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I ' 

ARGUMENT 

I. 

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO VACATE AN INHERENTLY 
SUSPECT WIRED PLEA WITHOUT HAVING APPLIED THE REQUISITE 
SPECIAL CARE TO DETERMINE WHETHER THE PLEA WAS TRULY 
VOLUNTARY -- FAILING EVEN TO CONDUCT AN EVIDENTIARY 
HEARING ON THE QUESTION. 

At the time when they were both subject to pre-trial 

imprisonment, Pollard understood that his wife -- afflicted with 

a rare disease called biliary dyskinesia -- was suffering greatly 

from 'her incarceration, and that her medical problems would be 

exacerbated by a trial and the possibility of a lengthy sentence. 

The prosecutors, however, refused to allow her to plead guilty 

unless her husband did the same. Moreover, they threatened to 

bring~~ew charges against her if Petitioner did not plead guilty. 

All guilty pleas must be entirely voluntary. 

A court may not accept a guilty plea without determining that 

it "represents a voluntary and intelligent choice among the 

alternative courses of action open to the defendant. 11 (North 

, / l 1 

Carolina v~ Alford, 400 u.s. 25, 31 (1970); see also Brady v. 

Unite~ates, 397 U.S. 742, 755 (1970).J 

In determining whether a plea was voluntary, a court must 

examine the totality of events and circumstances -- which in turn 

11 involves an evaluation of psychological and other factors that may 

reasonably be calculated to influence the human mind." (United 

States y. Colson. 230 F. supp. 953, 955 (S.D. N.Y. 1964) .) As the 

Supreme Court has emphasized, it is incumbent upon the trial court 

to conduct a probing, on-the-record inquiry to determine 

: ; ·, '' 
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voluntariness: 

To the extent that the district judge ... exposes the 
defendant's state of mind on the record through personal 
interrogation, he not only facilitates his own 
determination of a guilty plea's voluntariness but he 
also facilitates that determination in any subsequent 
post-conviction proceeding based upon a claim that the 
plea was involuntary. Both of these goals are undermined 
to the degree the district judge resorts to 'assumptions' 
not based upon recorded responses to his inquiries. 
(McCarthy v. United States, 394 U.S. 459, 467 (1969); ™ 
.il2.Q (United State~ v. Cody, 438 F.2d 287, 289 (9th Cir. 
1971), and the Bench Book tor U.S. District Judges 
(Federal Judicial Center).) 

~his requirement is embodied in Rule 11 (d) of the Federal 

Rules of Criminal Procedure. As the Second Circuit recently noted, 

"Rule 11 is not satisfied unless the district court determines the 

voluntariness of the guilty plea based upon the record responses 

to its questions." [United States v. Rossillo, 853, F.2d 1062, 1065 

(2d C~~~ 1988).) The burden is on the court to satisfy Rule 11, 
l • , I • ' 1 •·-

and a'dherence to the rule must be "scrupulous. 11 [,lg. at 1067.] 

Similarly, it is important for the court to "flush out any 

discussions that have occurred regarding the possible sentence a 

defendant may receive." (United states v. Gonzalez, 820 F.2d 575, 

579 (2d Cir. 1987).] 

A guilty plea induced by promises or threats which deprives 

it of the character of a voluntary act violates the constitutional 

guarantee ot due process. [cite to record?] A conviction based 

upon such a plea is open to collateral attack, regardless of when 
· , .. ; . r.. . .. ~~Ft , , 

it ocb~frs. [§.a Machibroda v. United states, 368 u. s. 487, 493 
. _c: " ' 

(1962f/ in which a hearing was ordered even though the defendant 

filed his habeas corpus petition three years after he had pleaded 
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guilty:] 

No determination of voluntariness was ever attempted in the 

court below. Rather than conducting a careful inquiry, the court 

below asked merely if the defendant understood "the consequences" 

of his plea and contented itself with a rote response in the 

affirmative. "Whatever the exact nature ' of the colloquy it is 

essential that it be m~aningful. . [T]he trial court should 

question the defendant in a manner that requires the accused to 

provide narrative responses" rather than "responses which merely 

mimic the indictment or the plea agreement." 

rountai_n, 777 F.2d 351, 356 (7th Cir. 1985) .] 

[United States y. 

"Wired" pleas must be examined with special care. 

If every plea agreement requires such scrutiny to determine 

voluntariness, a "wired" plea -- one induced by the promise of 

lenient treatment toward a third party if the defendant pleads 

guilty -- should merit an even more thorough probing by the trial 

court. The overwhelming weight of authority supports the common­

sense proposition that "guilty pleas made in consideration of 

lenient· ·tre~tment as against third persons pose a gr·eater danger 

of coercion than purely bilateral plea bargaining, and that, 

accordingly, 'special care must be taken to ascertain the 

voluntariness' of. guilty pleas entered in such circumstances. 11 

[Un~ted States Y, Nuckols, 606 F.2d 566, 569 (5th Cir. 1979) 

(quoting united states v. Tursi, 576 F.2d 396, 398 (1st cir. 1978). 

see .ll.ii.Q ~row v. united states, 397 F.2d 284, 285 (10th Cir. 1968); 

and s;;ortez v. United states, 337 F.2d 699, 101-102 (9th cir. 
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. . . 
1964) ·~ J 

In Bordenkircher Y, Hayes, 434 u.s. 357 (1978), the supreme 

Court left unresolved "the constitutional implications of a 

prosecutor's offer during plea bargaining of adverse or lenient 

treatment for some person other than the accused ... , which might 

pose a -greater danger of inducing a false guilty plea by skewing 

the assessment of the risks a defendant must consider." [434 U.S. 

at 364 n.B (Emphasis in original).) But the Court did take pains 

to note that the "'give and take' of plea bargaining (will be 

permitted only) so long as the accused is free to accept or reject 

the prosecution's offer." (lg. at 363, emphasis added.) 

No such leeway was permitted Jonathan Pollard. He was not 

free to reject th• prosecution's offer, lest he permanently 

endanger his wife's health. 

In United States v. cammisano, 599 F,2d 851 (8th Cir. 1979), 
·\ '. 1 J , _. ~ \ . ... 

a guilty plea was ordered vacated when the defendant claimed that 

"he [had .been] pressured into pleading guilty because of threats 

that, unless he did so, his brother ... might go to trial and 

receive a long sentence." (lg. at 852.J Both brothers had pleaded 
.; ,. I 

guiltt, The district court had ruled that defendant's statements 

adopting his attorney's remarks were sufficient to show compliance 

with Rule ll(d). [Id. at 855. J But the Court of Appeals found 

nothing in the record contained a "specific inquiry ... into the 

plea's voluntariness or whether it was the product of 'force, 

threats. ·or· 'promises, I II and held that "this procedure . falls short 

of the spirit and lettar of Rule 11 (d). . The essential 

13 



purpose behind Rule 11 is to seek judicial assurance that the plea 

is . voluntary and not wrongfully induced by force, threats or 
·; . I \ .:, 

promises. i, . (l.,g. at 855-856. J 

In Johnson y. Wilson, 371 F.2d 911, 912 (9th Cir. 1967), the 

Ninth Circuit held erroneous the trial court's dismissal of the 

appellant's claim that his "wired" guilty plea had been coerced: 

"Whether appellant's guilty plea was the voluntary choice of a free 

and unrestrained will (citations omitted) or was the product of a 

coerced confession, or was itself improperly induced or coerced, 

were questions of fact which could only be determined after an 

evidentiary hearing." The coercion worked on Jonathan Pollard was 
•• : ... ••• f ~ .l . ..' 

eve~ ~~ea~er than that involved in Johnson v. Wilson, where the 

police had merely threatened to proceed against defendant's wife 

and daughter. With Pollard's wife alarmingly ill and already having 

been in jail, he reasonably perceived the threats of additional 

charges as virtual threats against her life. 

In United States v. Daniels, 821 F.2d 76 (1st Cir. 1987), the 

appellant was again allowed to withdraw his guilty plea where the 

government failed to tell the court at the Rule ll hearing that it 

had made clear to the defendant that it would not accept guilty 

pleas· from· 'his two codefendants (his brother and brother-in-law) 

unless he also pleaded guilty." (il\. at 78-79.) In the case at 

bar, al though the district court should have been aware of the 

statements made by the prosecution to Jonathan Pollard connecting 

his wife's plea to his own, it made no meaningful inquiry about 

them. 

14 



A case similarly germane is Qnited States y. Nuckols, supra, 

where the appellant was held entitled to a hearing on his claim 

"that the prosecuting attorney induced his guilty plea by 

threatening I to prosecute appellant I s wife if he fought the case. '" 

Even though the prosecutors in Nuckols did not in fact bring 

charges against the appellant's wife, and [there was no evidence 

indicating that the app~ llant's wife had been involved in criminal 

conduct that would have justified her prosecution,] the Fifth 

Circuit nevertheless recognized the coercive element inherent in 

the mere threat to charge the wife. Here, the element of coercion 

was even stronger; Anne Pollard had already been charged with 

several offenses, and this lent credibil ty to the government's 

spectre of additional charges. 

The lower court failed completely to determine 
that Petitioner's wired plea was voluntary. 

Far from conducting the careful inquiry specifically needed 

to determine whether a "wired" plea is truly voluntary, the lower 

court exercised no scrutiny at all -- apparently satisfying itself 

with the idea that the plea agreement itself negated the 

possibility that it had been coerced. Instead of undertaking a 

meaningfully thorough inquiry, the court relied on a J2l:Q forma 

statement by Pollard's attorney asking that the guilty plea be 

accepted. (Plea Transcript at 7-8.] 

Likewise, the court failed to make any meaningful evaluation 

of the psychological factors involved that suggested the plea had 

been vitiated by coercion. Although Pollard admitted his guilt, 
I • . ) ~ ~- (, . ; • 1 j J I , •, 

·1 
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the judge asked him nothing even generally about whether he had 

been threatened by his wife's prosecution -- much less specifically 

about the connection between her plea and that of his own. 

Although ·she was scheduled to plead moments later, and though each 

plea agreement referred specifically to the other's, the judge made 

no effort to weigh the possibility that they were mutually 

coercive. 

Pollard's acknowledgment that he understood the consequences 

of his plea was no evidence of its voluntariness. In Martin v. 

~, 760 F.2d 1244 (11th Cir . 1985), the Eleventh Circuit, relyin9 

on Nuckols. ordered an evidentiary hearing to determine whether a 

guilty plea allegedly induced by threats to prosecute a spouse 

"were founded in good faith upon probable cause." [l,_g. at 1249.] 
~ ! ' • l • • ; : I : \ 

The defendant's prior attestation of voluntariness, 11 said the court 

in Martin, is insufficient to preclude his "subsequent claim that 

he pleaded guilty only to protect the third party." [IQ.. at 1248. J 

Rule 11 's plea bargaining rules serve not simply to 
benefit parties to an agreement , but also to allow the 
district court to assure that the agreement is just .. 

Thus, the court has an interest independent of that 
of the parties in knowing the terms of a plea agreement . 
. . . Because Rule 11 protects not only the parties but 
also the 'fairness, integrity [and) public reputation of 
judicial proceedings," other appellate courts have 
applied the requirement of raising questions below less 
strictly in the Rule 11 violations™ sponte. (1,g. at 
81.) 

; '- _. L. , 1 ... , .. ' · 

Even '•the cases that ultimately rejected the defendant's claim 
. •. ti, : 

that hi• guilty plea had been involuntarily (and therefore 

improperly) linked to that of a third party recognize that a 

hearing is imperative: whether a guilty plea was involuntary is a 

16 



question of fact which must be determined from the totality of 

circumstances in each case. [~, e.g., United States v. Usher, 

703 F.2d 956, 958 (6th Cir. 1983), in which the defendant claimed 

that linkage to his wife's plea was in itself sufficient coercion 

to vitiate his own.) Here Pollard invokes the appropriate standard 

under which the court must examine all the surrounding 

circumstances to determine whether the government-inspired linkage 

between his plea and that of his wife was coercive and therefore 

constitutionally impermissible. 

·Given the severity of the charges facing him, and the fact 

that his plea and the plea of his wife were known to be "wired," 

at a minimum the lower court should have conducted more than a 

cursory inquiry into Petitioner's decision to plead guilty, 
i • 

! 

specifically to ensure that it was truly voluntary and not coerced. 

The judge's failure to do so was not merely a technical violation 

of Rule 11, but amounted to reversible error. 

It is likewise important to note that neither the defendant 

nor his counsel is obliged affirmatively to raise the issue of the 

coercive circumstances surrounding the plea at the time it was 

made. • ·Rule 11 directs the court to determine that the plea is 

voluntary. "The rule places no such burden on the defendant. 11 

[United States v. Rossillo, 853 F.2d 1062, 1067 (2d Cir. 1988).J 

The careful inquiry by the court contemplated by Rule 11 would 

have probed the circumstances under which Petitioner pled guilty, 

and would have discovered that Pollard wa~ motivated to torego his 

right to a trial not only to minimize his chances of receiving a 

17 



life sentence, but clearly (and perhaps primarily) for the well-

being of his wife. It would have also made clear that the very 

coercion that vitiated Pollard's guilty plea constrained him to be 

silent unless required to speak in answer to the court's questions. 

Pleading guilty was the only way he could protect his wife from 

what he reasonably regarded as a serious threat to her life; but 

disclosure of the coercion that generated the plea would render it 

null, and in the absence of an effective guilty plea by Jonathan 

none would be available to Anne. 

Thus Pollard could not be expected to speak spontaneously, 

and his silence cannot be reasonably interpreted as a genuinely 

voluntary and valid waiver of his right to a jury trial. He did 

not waive his right to a trial by delaying his claim that the 

guilty plea .had been involuntary: he could not safely renounce his 
• • • .' 1 ; , l ~ ~t · ~ . I : 

plea until his wife was out on parole and subject to a lesser risk 

of retaliation by a potentially vindictive prosecution. Even had 

he wanted to waive his rights, he could not have done so without 

jeopardizing his wife. He was truly trapped. 

Indeed this is the dilemma presented by many "wired" plea 

agreements, and precisely why they must be scrutinized so 

carefully. 

inquiries; 

Clearly the judge below was bound to make those 

his failure to do so rendered the plea 

unconstitutionally defective, and should be reason enough . to vacate 

it arid ; :rem·~rid the ease. The only remedy now is to allow Petitioner 
' ' 

to withdr~w his plea of guilty and stand trial. 
'" • i : 
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I 
' . 1 . II. 

THE· LOWER COURT ERRED IN NOT NULLIFYING THE PLEA 
AGREEMENT, WHICH PROSECUTORS HAD BREACHED (A) BY FAILING 
TO LIMIT THEIR ALLOCUTION OF THE FACTS AS AGREED UPON; 
(B) BY PROMISING TO DISCLOSE PETITIONER'S 11 VALUABLE 1

' 

COOPERATION, BUT THEN CASTING ASPERSIONS UPON IT: AND (C) 
BY SEEKING TO INFLUENCE TUE COURT TO IMPOSE THE HARSHEST 
POSSIBLE SENTENCE. 

The essence of a plea agreement is the assurance in good 

faith that both sides will receive something of value. In the 

nature of a contract, specific. promises are exchanged between 

prosecutor and defendant. Interpretation of the terms of a plea 

agreement .is . subject to the same objective standards applied t6 

other contracts. [United States v. Pomazi, 851 F.2d 244, 250 (9th 
·.• 

Cir. 1988); United States v. Harvey, 848 F.2d 1547, 1552 (11th Cir. · 

1988); united states v. Packwood, 848 F.2d 1009, 1011 (9th cir. 

1988).] When a contract is materially breached, the aggrieved 

party has the right to seek its nullification. (Santobello v. New 

york, 404 u.s. 257 (1971); Brunelle v. United States, 864 F.2d 64, 

6 5 ( 8th Cir . 19 8 8 ) . ) 

Even where a breach is inadvertent or where the trial judge 

declines the prosecutor's recommendation, the interests of justice 
' I , \ • 1 1 ._..J r .' ~ 

require that a defendant receive 11 what is reasonably due in the 

circumstnnces. 11 [Santobello, 444 U.S. at 262.] A long and clear 

line ot cases holds the government to high standards of promise and 

performance; breaches of either explicit or implicit promises are 
. I . 

enough to invalidate a plea agreement. (United States v. 

Moscahlaidis, 868 F.2d 1357, 1361 (3rd Cir. 1989); United States 

v. Bowler, 585 F.2d 851, 853-55 (7th Cir. 1978); United States v. 

19 



Grandinetti, 564 F.2d 723 (5th cir. 1977); United states y. Brown, 
500 F.2d 375 (4th Cir. 1974); Correale v. United States, 479 F.2d 

944, 947 (1st Cir. 1973).) 

Here, in return for Petitioner's guilty plea, the government 

promised that it would limit its allocution to the facts and 

circumstances of the offenses committed; that it would make 

Pollard's cooperation known to the court; and that it would ask 

for a "substantial" not "maximum," but "substantial" 

sentence. The government breached each of these promises in its 

sentencing recommendations to the court. Petitioner had bargained 

away his right to trial in return for empty promises and illusory 

statements. He gave, but he did not receive. 

The government breached both the substance and 
spirit of the agreement in every particular. 

Instead of limiting its allocution to "the facts and 

circumstances of the offenses committed by Mr. Pollard" (Plea 
: ! ' , , 

Agreemen~ at 1 4(b)J, the government (after stating that the facts 

and circumstances it had presented in detail justified a 

''substantial period of incarceration") went on to malign Pollard's 

motives and character concluding that it was greed, not 

altruism, which had caused him to pass classified information to 

Israel. [Government's Memo•randum in Aid of Sentencing at 39-43.) 

In a subsequent memorandum, the government variously called 

Petitioner a "recidivist," "unworthy of trust," and "traitorous." 

(Reply to the Defendant's Sentencing Memorandum at 12 and 22.J At 
.. :_ . ... 1 :: ~-.• ~- • ; • ·- . • 

the · sentencing itself, the government called Pollard deceptive, 

20 



arrogant, vengeful, and 11 not a man of his word." [Transcript at 

44.) None of these statements could fairly be described as either 

11 fact II or ·••circurnstance 11 of the offense cornmi tted -- certainly not 

within any reasonably literal or figurative meaning of the plea 

agreement. 

A case directly on point is United States v. Moscahlaidis, 

868 F.2d 1357 (3rd Cir. 1989), in which the plea agreement 

permitted the government to inform the sentencing judge and 

probation off ice of "the full nature and extent" of the defendant's 

activities relevant to the facts. (Id. at 1359.] But the court 

found that the government had breached the agreement by using such 

phrases as "the depth of (the defendant's) greed and moral 

bankruptcy" and his "utter contempt for the welfare of his fellow 

man." [lg.] Such prosecutorial opinions, said the court, amounted 

to "nothing less than a 'transparent effort to influence the 

severity' of [the defendant's] sentence." [Id. at 1362.] 

In our case, the trial court's assertions that the 

prosecutors' opinions as to Pollard's character could somehow be 

construed as "tacts and circumstances" seem to swallow whole the 

government's strained interpretation of its commitment under the 

plea agre~ment. At best such a ''strict and narrow interpretation 
: , I , • ~ • ." :, t ; ' 

of it con\mitrnent is untenable." (United States v. crusco, 536 F.2d 
.... \ 

21, 26 .(3rd Cir. 1976).) At worst it renders all such language 

meaningless. 

The trial court also held that the government fulfilled its 
•. 1 ; 1 

promise to tell of Pollard's cooperation. But whatever the 
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, _. . •' I # 

• • •I 

prosecutors did say on that subject was unalterably diminished by 

gratuitous speculation about Petitioner's motives, doubts about 

his : remorse, and belittling comments about its timQlinQ~s. 

(citation to record?) The government agreed to inform the court 

of Pollard's cooperation -- only in the next breath to belittle its 

value. The defendant certainly cannot be understood to have 

bargained . for that kind of duplicity. (See United States v. 

~reenwood, 812 F.2d 632, 635 (9th Cir. 1987), and United States v. 

fisch, : 863 F.2d 690 (9th Cir. 1988).) 

The government encouraged the trial to 
mete out the maximum sentence. 

The government likewise violated its clearly-implied promise 

to seek something less than the maximum sentence, when it submitted 

two declarations from then-secretary of Defense Caspar Weinberger; 

in them he called for "severe punishment" of Pollard's 11 treason, 11 

which he found "difficult . . . to conceive [causing) a greater 

harm to national security. 11 [Weinberger Declaration at 45; 

Supplemental Declaration at 1-2.) There may be yet additional 

inflammatory and prejudicial allegations in the classified portions 

of the Weinberger Declarations -- to which Petitioner's current 

counsel has been denied access. However, even the non-classified 

portions of the declarations plainly expose the government's 

attempt to circumvent its commitment to recommend something less 

than the maximum sentence . 

. The prosecutors cannot avoid their explicit obligation under 

the plea agreement by using the statements of a public official not 
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part of the trial record. The government and Weinberger are one 

and the same. It was the government which submitted the 

declarations whose tone and content flew directly in the face of 

the plea agreement. (~ United States y, Cook. 668 F.2d 317 (7th 

Cir. 1982).) 

Moreover, in its attempt to have Pollard sentenced to life in 

prison, the government may wall have engaged in ~ parte 

communications with the sentencing judge. As alleged in the 

Oershowitz Affidavit, former Supreme court Justice Arthur Goldberg 

related to Professor Oershowitz that Judge Robinson had told him 

that one of the things that had "weighed heavily" in his sentencing 

decision was information the government had revealed to him 

concerning Pollard's alleged disclosure to Israel of classified 

information regarding Israeli missile programs in South Africa . 
. L 

We return to this point in Argument III infra. but note for now 

that if the allegation -- on which the court below refused to hold 

a hearing -- is accurate, it provides yet further evidence of the 
• •f I 

government's breach o! its promise not to seek a life sentence. 

Here the government has been permitted to interpret 

"substantial" as "maximum" -- thereby rendering the plea agreement 

of little or no value to Petitioner (except for the leniency 

promised his wife, which gave rise to the coercive element noted 

in ""Aigunien·t ~- I) . 
jl ' J, • .••• :I\ 

Ihe government prompted and facilitated what 
it claimed to be a breach by Petitioner. 

The government claims that Petitioner himself violated the 
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plea agreement by granting unauthorized interviews. 

Mud1 to the contrary, there is ample evidence that the 

government knowingly allowed Pollard to engage in the interviews, 

only then to assert that he had breached the agreement. Pollard 

was incarcerated both times he met with Wolf Blitzer, the reporter 

to whom he spoke. On each occasion he carefully followed the 

procedures imposed by federal prison regulations, including written 

notice to the Department of Justice. In fact the government not 

only acquiesced to but facilitated both the first interview -- upon 

whfch \ias based an article it could not fail to have noticed in the 

inte~nationally-circulated Jerusalem~ -- and the second. In 

short, the interviews and the articles they generated were anything 

but clandestine. 

The trial court found nothing whatever to substantiate the 

government's claim that Pollard had disclosed classified 

information to Blitzer -- perhaps because the court held no 

evidentiary hearing at all to resolve that factual dispute. Nor 

did it ever determine as a matter of fact or law that the procedure 

Pollard followed in granting the interviews was a violation of the 

plea agreement. 

Likewise, the lower court made no mention of Petitioner's 

argument that the government itself had attempted to prompt a 

breach by the Petitioner so that { in abrogation of the plea 

agreement) it could subsequently argue for a harsh sentence. It 

would be easy for an outside observer to conclude that • the 

government had "used Blitzer, hoping to obtain a long prison 

• ~ .. • l t . •. l : : I ~ , , , 

., : ,,,; ' · . 
• ' 
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sentence for Pollard." (See, e.g., Friedman, The Secret Agent, N.Y. 

Rev. Books 10 (Oct. 29, 1989).J 

The lower court permitted to go unchallenged the government's 

assertion that though Petitioner had breached the plea agreement 

he should still be held to it. But it is for the court, not the 

go~~iri~e~t · unilaterally, to decide if the defendant has breached. 

(Ynit.ed -States y, Calabrese, 645 F.2d 1379, 1390 (10th Cir. 1981), 

cert. denied, 451 U.S. 1018 (1982): see also United States y, 

Reardon. 787 F.2d 512 (10th cir. 1986) and united states v. 

Simmo~s, 537 F.2d 1260, 1261 (4th cir. 1976) .] 

In determining whether a plea agreement has been broken, the 

court must look to what was reasonably understood by the defendant 

when he entered his plea. [United States y. Casamento. 887 F.2d 

1141, cert, denied, 110 s.ct. 1138 (1989); United States v. Read, 

778 F.2d 1437 (2nd Cir. 1985), cert. denied, 479 u.s. 835 (1985); 

united states v. Travis. 735 F. 2a 1129 (9th cir. 1984).J 

Furthermore, if the court finds that the defendant has 

breached, the government's remedy is to be allowed to proceed to 

trial (Innes v. Dalsheim, 864 F.2d 974, 978 (2d cir. 1988), cert. 

denied, 110 s.ct. so (1989)] -- not to abrogate its own promises. 

In short, in this case it is the government which violated its 

duty of good faith and fair dealing -- and the Petitioner who is 

entitled to be discharged from the plea agreement. 

". · . .... -: . -If·, .. , : 
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III. 
0

THE . COURT BELOW ERRED WHEN THE SENTENCING JUDGE, HAVING 
IMPOSED UPON PETITIONER A DISPROPORTIONATELY HARSH 
SENTENCE, REFUSED HIS APPELLATE COUNSEL ACCESS TO VARIOUS 
EX PARTE DECLARATIONS AND DECLINED TO RECUSE HIMSELF WHEN 
HAVING TO RULE UPON A CHALLENGE TO HIS IMPARTIALITY. 

Petitioner has been denied the right to 
challenge the Weinberger Declarations. 

As part of its pre~sentence recommendations to the court, the 

government submitted two declarations from then-Secretary of 

Defense Caspar Weinberger, both of which offered Weinberger I s 

personal assessment of the damage Pollard had done to national 

security. Although Petitioner had never been charged with anything 
• ( ~ I • 

more th-a.h ·-h·aving givP.n classi!ied information to a friendly nation, 
. ~ t: ; t : • 

the Secretary wrote that "no crime is more deserving of severe 

punishment than conducting espionage activities against one's own 

country." (Weinberger Declaration at 45 (emphasis added).] 

Weinberger also declared that Pollard "should not be treated merely 

as a common criminal" and that the punishment should fit 

defendant's "treason." (Supplemental Declaration at 2.] 

This hyperbolic language in the non-classified portions of the 

Weinberger Declarations suggests strongly that the classified 
. I.' ' / , '. . • .1·, : , ; 

porti~~~ m,~ - include allegations that go beyond the charges that 
,.: ,, \ •. : 

• I 

formed 'the basis of Petitioner's indictment -- allegations which 

may be entirely false or grossly exaggerated, and whic~ may have 

contributed to the trial judge's decision to sentence Petitioner 

to a life term. To pursue this line of inquiry, Petitioner's new 

counsel obtained security clearance, and sought access to the 

26 
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classified portions of the Weinberger Declarations. When the 

The court below denied this motion. It reasoned that it was 

within its discretion to deny presentence materials to new counsel; 

that prior counsel as well as Pollard himself were given sufficient 

opportunity to comment on the classified documents; that prior 

counsel -· was competent: and that current counsel can examine the 

files of prior counsel. (United States v. Pollard, 747 F.Supp. 797, 

807 (1990).J 

In so ruling the lower court ignored the well-established 

requirement that presentence reports should be available to counsel 

at every level, even where the information they contain is already 

known. [United States v. Foss, 501 F.2d 522, 530 (1st Cir. 1974) . ] 

Also ignored was the fact that security regulations required 

counsel below to leave his notes about classified materials in the 

government's custody. [cite?) 
, . . , .. ... ' 

To support the proposition that presentence reports need be 

shown to appellate counsel only where a "gross abuse of discretion" 

was manifest, the lower court cited United States v. Lewis, 743 

F.2d 1127 (5th Cir. 1984), and United States v. Bernstein, 546 F.2d 

109 ( 5th Cir. 1977) . In both cases, however, the facts were 

substantially different: in both the defendants fully accepted the 

presentence report, and made no allegations as to improper 
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performance under their plea agreements.*** Pollard, in contrast, 

has consistently claimed that the presentence memoranda were 

"speculative, seriously flawed and exaggerated." (747 F.2d at 803.J 

The district court's opinion fails to explain why the circumstances 

of this case justify keeping these materials from appellate 

counsel. 

Petitioner was denied a fair and impartial 
hearing on the Dershowitz Affidavit. 

The allegations contained in the Dershowitz Affidavit lend 

further support to the argument that the judge below was negatively 

influenced by ll parte communications and that he should have 

recused himself -- or at the very least held an evidentiary 
. . . \ .. 

hearing. The affidavit suggests that the judge relied heavily upon 

the government's ll parte allegations that Pollard had supplied 

information to Israel about South Africa, a charge Petitioner would 

have strongly controverted -- had he only been able to do so. 

The court below denied Petitioner's request for a hearing 

because the judge's "recollection of events is in stark 

contradiction to that claim." [747 F.Supp. at 801.) The judge 

"knew" that the allegations in the Dershowitz Affidavit were 

*** The · appellant in Lewis "alleged no facts to show that the 
sent~rlc~ was a gross abuse of discretion {and] made only the wholly 
conclusionary allegation that his background and record were not 
properly · presented at sentencing." [743 F.2d at 1129.] In 
Bernstein. the defendant informed the court that the presentencing 
report was correct and was subsequently sentenced to sixty days in 
jail, well below the maximum he could have received. (596 F.2d at 
109.] 
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11 falsc." [Isl, at n.4.] But the trial court's opinion implies that 

a conversation did in fact take place -- a central allegation in 

the Dershowitz Affidavit that is never categorically denied. 

Petitioner, on the other hand, was rendered totally incapable of 

challenging the judge's conclusory characterization. He could not, 

for example, ask if the judge had received~ information relating 

to south Africa and if so whether it affected his sentence, or if 

there ever was a conversation with Justice Goldberg and if so 

whether Professor Dershowitz's recounting of that conversation was 

accurate. 

Petitioner was clearly entitled to a hearing on the affidavit. 

A trial judge cannot deny a hearing simply because he "knows" what 

happened outside of court and because he "believed the facts untrue 

as alleged." [Mack v. United States, 635 F.2d 20, 27 (1st Cir. 

1980); ™ also Machibroda v. United states, 368 U.S. 487 (1962); 

Walker y, Johnston, 312 u.s. 275, 287 {1941) and sanders v. united 

states, 373 u.s. 1, 20 (1963). J 

Not only should there have been a hearing on the affidavit, 
,. ' f ' · •• 

but at that hearing the judge below should have recused himself. 

The law on this subject is clear and unambiguous: a federal judge 

"shall disqualify himself in any proceeding in which his 

impartiality might reasonably be questioned," or where "he has 

personal ... knowledge of disputed evidentiary tacts concerning 

the proceeding," or where he is "likely to be a material witness 

in the proceeding." [Title 28, U.S.Code, Section 455.J The 

standard is an objective one, "designed to promote public 
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confidence in the impartiality of the judicial process." [H.R. No. 

93-1453, P.L. 93-512 at pp. 6355 (1974).) 

Fundamental fairness is violated when a judge rules upon the 

credibility of his own testimony; a judge has no particular 

competenc~· in factual recollection of unrecorded events. [Tyler v. 

Swenson, 427 F. 2d 412 at 415. J Were the analysis of the court 

below to be accepted, judges would always be insulated against 

challenges to their~ parte actions because they could always find 

an absence of bias simply by relying upon their "personal 

knowledge." 

The obvious problem of a court ruling on its own impartiality 

is the difficulty of removing the appearance of partiality. Such 

an appearance was not at all obviated -- indeed, it was encouraged 

by the judge's analysis here: "the (c)ourt knows that it did not 

rece:ive information, as is in fact the case, because and only 

because C>f its participation in this criminal action." ( 7 4 7 F. Supp. 

at 800.] The court's reasoning is tautological: it bypasses the 

question of its impartiality by deciding that in its own view the 

charge is baseless, and that therefore there could have been no 

partiality. The court thus eschews any objective standard to 

determine impartiality, concluding baldly that the allegation "is 

simply not credible." [747 F.Supp. at 801.) 

If the charge of partiality had been viewed objectively, the 
. ; ·-· ,.. J ... ·. : 

possibiiitX that the judge below could become a material witness 
' ·r 

in a future proceeding would have been clear. For that reason 

alone he should have disqualified himself . 
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This. v'ery Court has held that a judge should recuse himself 

whenever there has been even "an appearance of bias or prejudice 

sufficient to permit the average citizen reasonably to question 

[his) impartiality." [United States v. Heldt, 668 F.2d 1238, 1271 

(D.C. Cir. 1981), cert. denied, 456 U.S. 926 (1982), emphasis in 

original.] Under Sec. 455(a), "recusal is required even when a 

judge lacks actual know_ledge of the facts indicating his interest 

or bias in the case if a reasonable person, knowing all the 

circumstances, would expect that [he) would have actual knowledge. 11 

fLiljeberg v. Health Services Acquisition Corp., 108 s. ct. 2194, 
· l i .. • 

2202 l. (1988) ■) 
. , i ·. 

The Sentence Imposed Upon Petitioner 
was Grossly Disproportionate. 

It is likewise evident that the classified portions of the 

Weinberger Declarations and the ex parte communications were 

extremely prejudicial to Petitioner. The penalty imposed -- life 

imprisonment with a recommendation against parole[???] -- is so 

grossly disproportionate to the gravity of Pollard's offense, as 

well as to other sentences received by those convicted of similar 

must 
1

have been influenced by government charges which the 

Petitioner never had a legitimate opportunity to contravene . 

.Jonathan Pollard's activities consisted solely of passing 

information to Israel, an American ally, regarding the production, 

location, and performance of Arab military hardware and 

capabilities. His conduct was motivated by a desire to uphold an 
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Executive Agreement between the United States and Israel, which he 

understood to require the disclosure of the particular information 

he provided to the Israelis. (cite to record?] He did not 

compromise the internal security of the United States. Indeed -

- as subsequent events in the Persian Gulf indicate -- far from 

damaging United States interests, Pollard's actions enhanced them. 

Intelligence maps he gave to Israel enabled that country to develop 

an impro,·ed defensive capability and to refrain from a potentially 

divisive active improve in the Persian Gulf War. (See, e.g., U.S. 

News & World Rep., Sept. 24, 1990, at 40.] 

The degree of disparity between Pollard's crime and his 

punishment is magnified by a comparison of Pollard's sentence with 

those given to offenders convicted of similar crimes. For example, 

an Egyptian-born American citizen named Abdelkader Helmy was 

sentenced to forty-six months in prison for illegally exporting 

mat.erial used in Stealth missiles to Egypt, which planned to share 
' 

the material with Iraq. (N.Y. Times, 12/7/89 at A12, col.3.) Navy 

Ensign Steven Baba received a two-year prison term for illicitly 

transmitting codes to South Africa. [N.Y. Times, 1/21/82 at B9, 

col.6.] And Samuel Morison, an analyst at the ultra-secret Naval 

Intelligence Support Center, hid in his apartment over 3500 

confidential documents and 4000 classified photographs, some of 

which he sold to J'ane' s Defence Weekly (a British t_nagazine). 

Unlike Pollard, Morison neither cooperated with prosecutors nor 

plea'c;ied ·'guilty. Nevertheless, he was sentenced to but two years 

in prison '{and was released after eight months). (Weiss, "The Quiet 
: ' • , .: . 



coup, 11 Harper's, September 1989 at p. 54; N. Y. Times, 12/8/85 at D4, 

col.+.) . , 
• ·, i °' • .. ; ·J \~ .' . :· 

• I . ' , . , 

· Even: .. more serious crimes of espionage -- and even those 

commiti~d on behalf of non-friendly countries -- are punished less 

severely. For example, Richard Miller received a sentence of 

twenty years for passing a counter-intelligence manual to a Soviet 

Agent; he is eligible for parole in seven years. [N. Y. Times, 

2/5/91, at B6, col.2.) Army Warrant Officer James Hall was 

convicted of accepting $100, ooo to give classified information 

(including documents revealing intelligence communications and war 

plans) to East Germany and the Soviet Union; he was sentenced .to 

fortJ :Ye~t~ -~nd fined $50,000. [N.Y. Times, 3/11/89, at A9, col.2.) 

Marine Sergeant Clayton Lonetree was convicted on thirteen counts 

of espionage for conspiring with the KGB; he received thirty years. 

(N.Y. Times, 8/25/87, at Al, col.1.] David Barnett sold 

intelligence data to Russia (including the identity of thirty U.S. 

agents) while working for the CIA; he was sentenced to eighteen 

years. {N.Y. Times, 1/9/81, at Al, col.l.J William Ball gave anti­

tank missile radar technology to a Polish agent: he received eight 

years. [N.Y. Times, 12/17/81, at A20, col.6.J Ernst Forbrich, who 

purc~ased U.S. defense secrets for East Germany, was sentenced to 
.' ! •., If• 

fifteen _years. (N.Y. Times, 8/4/84, at AS, col.6.] 

The most telling indication of the relative harmlessness of 

Jonathan Pollard's offense may be the government's own response 

towards him: he was never charged with causing injury or intending 

to cause injury to the United States, but merely with intending to 
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give information to the advantage of a foreign country. Thus the 

government charged Pollard under the least egregious prong of 18 
1 ' : : 

u.s.c: Section 794(a). If Pollard's actions were truly as harmful 

as insinuated in the Weinberger memoranda, or in ex parte 

communications with the trial judge, it is difficult to believe 

that the government would have charged him under this provision of 

the law. 

• ·in sh6rt, Jonathan Pollard was not a traitor to his country. 

He never sought to give aid or · comfort to an enemy. While his 

loyalty and partiotism may have been misguided, and while what he 

perceived to be a benign purpose does not excuse his violation of 

the .' law, the gravity of Pollard's crime must be considered 

relatively minimal. 

By contrast, the sentence which Pollard received was extremely 

severe. Only a sentence of death would have been a more drastic 

punishment. No one in this country has ever been executed for 

peace~ime espionage, however. (Not since the Rosenberg case during 
' the Kore.an War has anyone been executed for wartime espionage.) 

Thus for all practical purposes Pollard received "the most severe 

punishment that ... could have [been) imposed." [Solem, 463 U.S. 

at 297.) 

When a particular statute proscribes a broad range of 

activities, the trial court must not only refrain from exceeding 

the statutory maximum but also from meting out a punishment which 

exceeds what the legislature thought to be proportionate. [ See 

Thackery, Garrison. 445 F.Supp. 376 cw.o.N.c. 1978); People v • 
• 11 ... . ' 
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wango, 534 P.2d 1001 (1975); and State v. Evans, 245 P.2d 788 

(1972) .] In Pollard's case, just as the trial court gave little 

heed to the plea agreement, it paid no attention to the range of 

punishments ·intended by Congress for the peacetime communication 

of classified documents. 

The legislative history of 18 u.s.c. Sec.794(a) independently 

demonstrates that Jonathan Pollard's sentence goes well beyond the 

range of sentences contemplated by Congress for the peacetime 

communication of classified documents. The War and National Defense 

Act of 1917 limited the maximum penalty for the communication of 

such material during peacetime to twenty years. The substantive 

penalties remained unaltered when the Act was overhauled in 1948. 

Six years later Congress amended the statute once again with the 

undcrstan~ing that, except under the most rare circumstances, the 
'• •' I 

range of punishments for peacetime espionage would remain what it 

was before. ( See 1954 Cong. Rec. at 10,105; 10,115; 14,598; and 

14,600.] 

Indeed, in the light of clear precedent, a strong case could 

be made that his sentence should be invalidated as cruel and 

unusual punishment under the Eighth Amendment. In Solem v, Helm, 

463 U.S. 277 (1982), the supreme Court stated that proportionality 

analysis under the Eighth Amendment should be guided by three 
• ·~ ' ' j .. 

objective '· ·tactors. These factors include (a) the gravity of the . : _, ... . 

offense a.nd the harshness of the penalty; (b) the sentences imposed 

on other criminals in the same jurisdiction; and (c) the sentences 

imposed for commission ot the same crime in other jurisdictions. 
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(.lg. at ·29·0-92.] Thus courts must ask whether or not the sentence 

bears any rational relation to the nature of the offense, and they 

must compare the sentence of those received by other persons 

convicted of similar or more severe crimes.[See Note, 

Disproportionality in Sentences of Imprisonment, 79 Colum. L. Rev. 

1119, 1131 (1979).] As the Court noted in Solem, if the sentence 

is found to be dispropo~tionate on either of these grounds, there 

is a violation of the Eighth Amendment. (An Eighth Amendment 

violation may also be found from the combined effect of these two 

inquiries. (Solem v. Helm, 463 u.s. at 277 n.17. ]) 

Pollard passed classified data to a friendly nation during 

peacetime. What he did was clearly wrong, but it was not treason. 

Much worse offenders have receive much lighter punishment. By 

sentencing him to life in prison, the court below was 

disproportionately harsh and substantially exceeded well-

established sentencing standards. At a minimum, this 

disproportionality of sentence strongly suggests that the trial 

judge may well have been unduly influenced by prejudicial and 

inflammatory material in the Weinberger Declarations, as well as 

by~ parte communications as alleged in the Dershowitz A!!idavit. 

This Court should accordingly grant Petitioner's counsel 

access to the unexpurgated Weinberger Declarations, order a hearing 

on the· allegations of the Oershowitz Affidavit, and require the 

trial judge to recuse himself so that he may be called as a 

material witness. 
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I , 

CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated above, the District Court's order 

denying Petitioner's Motion to Withdraw his Guilty Plea, his 

Motion for Access to Classified Sentencing Materials, and his 

Moti6n to Disqualify the Court, should be reversed. 

' ~ . .l ,. , ., ' l , 
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To: Alex Schindle r 
From: David Sa p e rs t ein 

RELIGIOUS ACTION CENTER 
OF REFORM JUDAISM 

~;--_.Y 1 

ih ~ ,I), / ~ z ,/ 
iwo✓ I ~.\,,, 

\ ·t p9 
November 1 , 1990 I\""'✓ 

I was fascinated by the material which you sent to me regarding the 
Pollard matter. In particular, where did you get it from and for what 
purpose. 

Fo : the record, I concu r s t rongly wi th your own v iew of the case i.e 
he was guilty and should be punished; but the sentence (whether or not 
as result of improper gcve rnment interference) was grossly out of 
proportion to the sentr;nce s give·., to otr.ers engaged in similar 
activities -- particularly under the circumstances that motivated him. 

Much of this memorandum is carelessly written so I am not certain of 
several key facts. First, is this memorandum a public document or is 
under the protective order of the court (at~d "leaked" to you)? 
Second, regarding the sentence at tbe end of page one and the top of 
page two: is it I s rael or Pollard who was accused of giv ing nuclear 
technology to Sout h Africa? The sentence, albe it ambiguous, indicates 
it was Israel. Later t"l1e memorandum implies it was Pollard . 

If this gets out to the Black community it would be a disaster. 

As to the legal conseque nces of the memorandum itself, they are 
apparently not app e aling t he sentence itself but using the cumulative 
impact of all of this information as a m~ans to withdraw the plea and 
have a new trial . In~e re s ting approach. 

Oth e ·.:- taa n the gener: ... l i.n i.:."' ·.::e st: ~: the document, is there any question 
be:t:).Ce u s '! 'i ncy werer1't, fo :: e x &rnp) e, ask ing ~0r grc,upc to join in an 
amicus on t:hi s ma tte r, i·1e re they ? l certainly would agree to do so on 
the sentence issue . This approach is more problema:::ic, and while I 
would p r obably end up s upporting it, I ,;.;·oul d need to see the more 
detaile d memo . 

Let me kr,ow . 
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DATE: 

FROM: 

TO: 

COPY: 

MEMORANDUM 

October 9, 1990 

Rabbi Alexander M. Schindler 

Rabbi David Saperstein 

The enclosed was sent to me by Jonathan Pollard. Please let me 

have your reaction to it. 

While I have not changed my mind about his guilt and my revulsion 

with it, I have been troubled by the severity of the sentence. 

Is this something we should get involved with? 

Thanks much. 



FROM: 

TO: 

Edith J. Miller 

David Foster 

MEMORANDUM 

February 12, 1991 

Religious Action Center 

Thanks so much for returning the correspondence which we sent 

down to you from Morris Pollard. That is what I was looking for. 

In addition, I am grateful for the o ther materials which we will 

keep in our file on Jonathan Pollard. 

By the way, you are not Steve Foster's son, he is your father! 

He should be very proud of you - - your report to our Executive 

Committee was wonderful. I am only sorry that your visit to 838 

was such a brief one. Maybe next time you will let me know in 

advance and come on a day when we can do lunch together. 

It was nice seeing some of your R.A.C. colleagues at the NFTY 

Convention, I am sorry you were not there, it was such a terrific 

gathering. I enjoyed it immensely. 

All the best. 

p . s . : It will not be necessary to send me all the materials 

you receive from David Kirshenbaum, Esq. Should I ever 

need i t, I will holler and get it from you . 



To: Edie 
From: Steve Foster's son 
Re: Jonathon Pollard 

Hello. I am sending you copies of everything we have in our Pollard file. 
Additionally, I have contacted David Kirshenbaum, Esq., he has been very 
involved with organizing general support for Pollard. He is sending me a great 
deal more info. which I will send on to all of you. If I can be of further 
assistance please just scream. 

On a personal note, it was great seeing you on Monday, I definately have to 
come by 838 more often. 

Take care. David. 



Tel: (714) 676-6879 

Dear Friends: 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA COALITION 
CITIZENS FOR JUSTICE, INC. 
Justice for the Pollards 
38800 Vi .a . d.e Oro 
Temecula, CA. 92~90 
March 28, 1990 

While the rescue of Soviet Jewry from dangers that 
threaten their lives is uppermost in our minds, we must not ignore 
the grave injustice and cruel treatment inflicted, by our own 
government, on Jonathan and Anne Pollard. Both should be of deep 
concern to Jews everywhere and, indeed, to all fair-minded men and 
women. 

We are enclosing a Summary of Arguments set forth by Jonathan~s 
attorney, Hamilton P. Fox, III, in a Motion, to withdraw the Guilty 
Plea of Jonathan Pollard, submitted to the United States District 
Court for the District of Columbia on March 12, 1990. 

A Newsletter, reviewing the €Vents preceding the sentencing, the 
sentencing itself and the subsequent treatment, or rather 
mistreatment, of the Pollards in prison, is also included so that 
a clear understanding may be gained of the imperative need for qn 
open trial. 

Friends, we urge you to inform your family, colleagues, friends and 
organizations, of this important development. Funds are urgently 
needed to enable us to continue with the work we are doing. We 
thank you for whatever contributions you are able to make. 

Shalom 

Beatrice Tabakrnan 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA COALITIOIJ - CITIZENS FOR JUSTICE, INC. 

38800 Via de Oro - Temecula - California - 92390 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

United States of America 

v. 

Jonathan Jay Pollard 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) ______________ ) 

Criminal No. 86-0207 (AER) 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF 
MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA OF JONATHAN JAY POLLARD 

Defendant Jonathan Pollard moves the Court to allow him to 

withdraw his plea of guilty, entered June 4, 1986, to a one count 

indictment alleging a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 794(c) ~ 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

A motion to set aside a guilty plea must be granted if the 

government fails to keep the promises that it made to the 

defendant in order to induce the plea. In this case the 

government made three promises and broke all three. First, it 

promised not to seek a life sentence. But the entire tenor of 

its written and oral submissions at sentencing was a request for 

just such a sentence. Particularly egregious were declarations 

from former Secretary of Defense Weinberger, submitted by the 

government, which, among other things, falsely accused Pollard of 

having committed treason and requested a sentence consistent with 

an offense that Weinberger claimed was more deserving of severe 

punishment than any other crime. 



The government also promised Pollard that it would limit the 

statements it made to the court about the sentence to the facts 

and cirGumstances of the offenses committed by Pollard. Despite 

this promise, and after filing 35 pages of information about the 

offenses, the government discussed many other subjects. It 

accused Polla r~ of being motivated by greed, described his 

alleged "high lifestyle," claimed that he was without remorse for 

his crimes, and claimed that he was being deceitful, vengeful, 

and arrogant. In so arguing to the court, the government 

exceeded the limits it had promised to impose on itself in order 

to induce Pollard to plead guilty. It also reinforced its 

efforts to seek a life sentence. 

The third promise that the government broke was its promise 

to inform the court of Pollard's cooperation and of the 

considerable value of that cooperation. The government did make 

the appropriate statements about Pollard's cooperation, but it 

then undermined them completely by arguing that his cooperation 

was motivated solely by self-interest and, more importantly, by 

claiming that his cooperation came too late to apprehend his 

Israeli co-conspirators who had fled the country. This conduct 

constituted nothing less than an attempt to "sandbag" a 

defendant, to minimize the importance of his cooperation, and to 

enhance the chances of a life sentence. 

In addition to violating the plea agreement itself, the 

government improperly accused Pollard of violating the same 

agreement by giving two interviews to a journalist without first 
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obtaining proper permission. Both interviews occurred while 

Pollard was incarcerated prior to sentencing. Before gi~ ing the 

first interview, Pollard, in accordance with federal regulations, 

informed the Department of Justice, in writing, of his intent to 

do so. The Department gave its permission and facilitated the 

interview. No other procedures 'existed to notify the government. 

After. the first interview, the governme_nt made no effort to 

revise or supplement its procedures with respect to Pollard's 

contact with the press . Accordingly, before giving a second 

interview, Pollard again followed the regulations, notified the 

Department of Justice in writing, and received the Department's 

permission to give the interview. 

Despite Pollard's adherence to the letter of the only 

procedures that existed for press contact, the government accused 

Pollard of violating the plea agreement in its sentencing 

submissions. Given the government's own failure to devise 

alternative procedures, it was unfair and improper for the 

government to allege Pollard's violation of non-existent 

procedures as a reason for the court to impose a longer sentence. 

This was but another effort to circumvent its promise not to ask 

for life. 

If the government alleges a violation of a plea agreement, 

the defendant is entitled to a hearing at which the government 

has the burden of p~oof . Here the government asserted and the 

Court found a violation without a hearing, and relied on that 

alleged violation, in part, to justify a life sentence. 
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If Pollard had violated the plea agreement, the appropriate 
remedy would have been for the agreement to be set aside and for 
the government to prosecute and try Pollard for all his alleged 
crimes. Instead the government took advantage of Pollard's part 
of the bargain by continuing to benefit from his cooperation but 
failed to live up to its side of the bargain, i.e., limiting its 
sentencing recommendation to less than life, comment.ing only on 
the offenses committed, and informing the court that Pollard's 
cooperation was of considerable value to the government. 

These various violations of the plea agreement and unfair 
claims that Pollard had violated the agreement had a substantial 
effect on the sentence. In other instances where espionage 
convictions have been obtained, the length of the sentence has 
varied substantially, depending on the country on whose behalf 
the espionage was committed. When the country has been hostile, 
the sentences have frequently been life sentences. When the 
espionage has benefited an ally, and particularly where the 
defendant has cooperated with the government, much lesser 
sentences have been imposed. Pollard stands as the exception to 
this rule. He committed espionage to aid one of the United 
States' closest allies, entered a guilty plea, and cooperated 
completely. Yet he still received a life sentence. 

Alternatively, Pollard's guilty plea should be set aside 
because it was coerced. When Pollard entered his plea, his wife, 
who was ill, had suffered greatly as a result of her pre-trial 
incarceration. Pollard believed that further incarceration might 

- 4 -



severely damage her health and perhaps threaten her life. Yet 

despite his wife's substantially lesser culpability, the 

government threatened to prosecute .her for multiple offenses 

unless she pled guilty. Pollard was aware that if, after a 

trial, his wife was convicted of multiple offenses, she would 

almost certainly be imprisoned. On the other hand, if she pled 

guilty, it seemed likely to him that she would receive a sentence 

of probation. But the government refused to accept a guilty plea 

from Mrs. Pollard unless Mr. Pollard also entered a guilty plea. 

The pleas were "wired." Pollard's plea was therefore not 

voluntary, but was coerced by the threat to his wife. 

Finally, the court erred at the guilty plea hearing by not 

inquiring of Pollard personally about the voluntariness of the 

plea and specifically about the "wiring" of the plea. 

For all these reasons, Pollard requests that he be allowed · 

to withdraw his plea of guilty and to stand trial. 

\ 
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Th e onited States of America v. Jonathan Pollard -
Time for a Reassessment _? '-.. S~~/ 

;~ ~=-" ~s ) g :-o·,1ing awareness across all political spectrums i@, 
:.:-. : :; · :::; :.;:;-c :-·/ tha t our government failed to properly assess th yp" 

:-i~•• :1;;qe rs posed by Iraq to the b nited States and to the 
cu:-: -:·:' of the world community at large. Our intelligence 

co--un:~y did it s j ob in gathering the necessary informat ion 
eout ::-~q, bu t ou r political leadership blundered abysmally in 

t 1 1nq o draw t he obvious conclusions from Iraq's military 
Ct l 'll t l CS • 

JOA h n Polla rd, a f ormer United States Naval Intelligence 
O t c r, 1 now serv i ng a prison sentence ~or providing Israel 

1th cl ssitied United States ·documents about Arab weapons 
ayata .. and ilitary c a pabilities, including the information, now 

o triqh~ening e o t.he wor l d community, of Iraq 1 s efforts Lo 
produce chemi~al, biologica l and nuc l ear weapons. Like Oliver 
North, who a cted on his belief that the United States had an 
obl i gat i on to aid the Contras in Nicaragua, notwithstanding 
congressional prohibitions against such activity, Pollard 
strongly believed that information critically important to 
Israel's security ought to be furnished to Israel. Pollard could 
not understand why the political decision had been made not to 
share with Israel such information as Iraqi production on a grand 
scale of chemical weaP,ons and the efforts Iraq was making to 
deliver to Israeli population centers such terrible weapons of · 
destruction. 

In Pollard's mind, furnishing such information to Israel, far 
from harming the United States, served American interests by 
deterring aggression against our most loyal ally in the Middle 
East. As only one example among many of the degree to which the 
United States can rely upon Israel, year in and year out, the 
country that heads the list of those countries that vote most 
often with the United States at the United Nations, is Israel. 
Last year, Israel supported the United states position at the 
U.N. 88% of the time. Second on the list was Great Britain, 
which supported the U.S. position 77% of the time. By contrast, 
Egypt, which is supposed to be America·s s~rongest suppo~~er in 
the Arab world and Saudi Arabia, the country we are defending 
with our troops, each supported the American position only 11% of 
the time, just slightly better than Syria and Iraq's 8%. 

Thus, while Pollard was charged under, and plead guilty to, one 
count of conspiracy to violate a Federal statute that prohibits a 
person from communicating to a foreign government information 
relating to national defense either "with intent or reason to 
believe that it is to be used to the injury of the United States 
or to the advantage of a foreign nation", the specific charge 

.brought against Pollard was limited to "having intent and reason 
to believe that the [information] would be used to the advantage 
of Israel ... " Quite significantly, he was never charged with 
intending to harm or injure the United states. 
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Surely, one would b~ hard pressed to find many Americans today who would support a policy that made light of, if not ignored, the acquisition by countries such as Iraq of arsenals of mass destruction. It was precisely our unbridled willingness to draw closer to Iraq at all costs, regardless of the terrible evils perpetrated by Iraq (such as the use of poison gas against Kurdish villages), that was behind the refusal to share with Israel information about Iraq's military projects and objectives. How many Americans can honestly say, given what they now know about Iraq, th~t they would not be absolutely thrilled had Israel acted on the type of information supplied to them by Pollard and eliminated Iraq's chemical arsenals? 

Nevertheless, the prosecution of an intelligence .officer who acts on his own determination as to what is in the national interest and who, in so doing, breaks the la~s of this country, is not in and of itself troublesome. What is however deeply shocking and disturbing is that- while Oliver North served no time in prison, and other individuals who provided United States allies with classified information received, if at all, very lenient prison sentences, Pollard was sentenced to life imprisonment. 

Earlier this year, Pollard's counsel, Hamilton Fox III, submitted to District Court Judge Aubrey Robinson, who sentenced Pollard~ motions to withdraw Pollard's guilty plea. The motions cite various grounds in support of the withdrawal of the plea, asserting, · inter alia, that the government prosecutors committed multiple breaches of its plea agreement with Pollard, that • Pollard's guilty plea was coerced and that Judge Robinson failed to adequately inquire, especially given the particular circumstances of the case and the proceedings, into the possibility that Pollard's plea agreement was not entered into voluntarily. There is also a suggestion that the government provided Judge Robinson with false ex parte information about Pollard which the government knew to be false and which Robinson allegedly admitted had a decisive impact on his sentencing. (An ex parte communication is a coro~unication betw~en ~ judgs -and only one party to an adversarial judicial proceeding where no notice of, or the opportunity to contest the substance of, the communication is given to a person with an adverse interest.) If true, this would constitute not only an uncontrovertible ground for withdrawal of Pollard's plea, but would also require Robinson to withdraw from any further judicial proceedings in Pollard's case. In September, Judge Robinson rejected each of Pollard's motions and Pollard is now appealing that decision. 

Pollard has been imprisoned nearly five years and the disturbing questions that most people were too squeamish and uneasy about asking when Pollard was first sentenced have yet to be a11swered in any manner whatsoever. What was it about the Pollard affair that resulted in a sentence that was not only grossly deviant from sentences meted out to other individuals who passed 
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classified information to American allies, but even more harsh 
than the punishments imposed on Americans who spied for 
adversaries of the United States? 

For example in 1981, Steven Baba, a U.S. Navy ens·ign who provided 
south Africa with classified information, received a pris on 
sentence of only two years. Similarly, in 1986, Sharon Scrange, 
a CIA employee who divulged classified information, including the 
names of CIA operatives in Ghana. to a Ghanian agent, was also 
sentenced to only two years in prison. With, respect to Americans 
who have spied for Soviet bloc countries, William Bell, , who 
provided a Polish agent with information 011 United Sta tes 
antitank missile and nuclear technology was sentenced to a prison 
term of eight years. Ernest Forbrick, who purchased U.S. secrets 
in order to pass them on to East Germany, received a 15 year 
prison sentence. 

As Professor Alan Dershowitz of Harvard Law School, who has 
served as counsel to Pollard has argued with respect to the 
Pollard sentence, "History provides at least some relevant 
parameters which allow one to conclude, with reasonable 
confidence, that if comparable information had been provided by a 
French-American to France or a Swedish-American to Sweden, it is 
unlikely that the sentence would have been as severe." 

One must also ask what benefit Pollard received by pleading 
guilty to the charges against him, fully cooperating with the 
government in its investigation and saving the government the 
expense of a trial. Given these lingering questions, and 
especially in light ·of recent events, a public reconsideration of 
the Pollard affair and the manner in which our government 
prosecuted Pollard is long overdue. 

The United States Supreme Court has held that, "When a plea rests 
in any significant degree on a promise or agreement of the 
prosecutor, so that it can be said to be part of the ·inducement 
or consideration, such promise must be fulfilled." (Santobello v. 
New York. 1971). Wnen a breach of ·such ·a promise takes place, 
the sentence must be vacated and the case remanded to the court 
which sentenced the defendant. Following remand, the court which 
initially sentenced the defendant must either allow the defendant 
to withdraw his plea or grant the defendant specific performance 
of the agreement on the plea, in which case the defendant should 
be resentenced by a different judge. This remedy, the Supreme 
Court held in Santobello, must be granted a defendant even if the 
breach was inadvertent and even if the sentencing judge stated 
that a prosecutor's recommendation did not influence him. 

Pollard's motion to withdraw his 0uilty plea presented evidence 
of the breach by the government of at least three undertakings it 
made in its plea agreement with Pollard. The most important of 
these promises was that the government would not ask for a life 
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sentence, but rather,. would limit its recom..'tlendation to asking 
for a "substantial" sentence. Notwithstanding this promise, 
Secretary of Defense Caspar Weinberger submitted two declarations to the s~ntencing court (the first being classified and detailing the nature and extent of the purported harm Pollard may have 
caused to national security) that could plainly be interpreted as 
advocating a life sentence. Weinberger, for example, wrote in 
his declaration to the court the day before sentencing, "It is 
difficult for me, even in the so-called •year of the spy' to 
conceive of gr~ater harm to national security than that caused by 
the defendant . . . " In a· separate statement to the court' 
Weinberger declared, "Punishment, of course, must be appropriate 
to the crime, and in my opinion, no· crime is more deserving of 
severe puni~hment than conducting espionage activities against 
one's own country." 

The "year of the spy" referred to by'Weinberger included the 
arrest and conviction of a number of Americans, such as John 
Walker and Jerry Whitworth who, for years, spied for the Soviet 
Union, causing massive damage, including the compromising of 
American military and technologic secrets, the disclosing of 
American operatives in Communist countries and the death of U.S. 
military personnel. Walker's espionage activities on behalf of 
the Russians spanned~ period of seventeep years. Pollard's 
motion argued that, in stating to the court his opinion that 
Pollard caused greater harm to national security than the likes 
o t a John Walker, Weinberger was sending a very clear message to 
the sentencing judge. If Walker got life and Pollard caused as 
much or greater damage to national security, Pollard too should 
receive a life sentence. The government was clearly and 
improperly using the Weinberger memoranda to circumvent the most 
important promise of the plea agreement. The Weinberger 
memoranda, in fact, probably had more persuasive value than had 
the same arguments been made by the prosecuting attorney. 

Judge Robinson dismissed as "utterly without basis" the claim 
that the submission of the Weinberger . memoranda. w~s a_:n i;!.ttempt by the government to circumvent its promise not to ask for · a life 
sentence. It is astounding to read the Weinberger memoranda, 
including the statements cited above, and then read the flippant 
and imprecise one sentence summary by Robinson of the gist of 
Weinberger•s submissions. Thus, Robinson writes in his decision, 
"The opinion [expressed by Weinberger] that a 'severe sentence' 
is warranted in no way means that the (emphasis in the original) 
most severe sentence should be imposed." Thus, Weinberger's 
submission that the punishment imposed on Pollard should fit the 
crime of espionage activities that caused as much or greater harm 
~o this ~ountry as the activities of spies for the Soviet Union 
who receiv?-d life sentences, is converted into simply an opinion 
that a severe sentence is warranted. Only by completely ignoring the very words in Weinberger's submission to the court could 
Robinson have failed to have recognized that Weinberger•s 

, l 
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statements constituted an obvious violation ~f the government's 
p l ea agreement. Inexplicably, that is exactly what Robinson 
seems to have done. 

One fu rther example of Robinson's obfuscation of the pla t n 
mea n i ng of Weinberger's words is equally incredible. After 
wr iting the court that in the "year of the spy" he could conceive 
of no " g reater harm to national security than that caused by" 
Polla r d, We i nberger wrote that, !'The punishment imposed (on 
Pollard ] s hou l d reflect the perfidy of the individual's actions, 
the magni tude of the treason committed and the needs of, national 
secur·i ty." As Pollard's motion points out,• "Pollard did not 
c0111J11it treason and it was outrageous for the government to claim 
that he d i d ... the Constitution of the United States provides, 'Treason against the United states, shall consist only in levying 
Wa r against them, or in adhering to their Enemies, giving them 
Aid and Comfort ... ' As Weinberger was well aware, Israel and 
the United States were not and never have been in a state of war 
and are not enemies. There is absolutely no justification for 
the Secretary of Defense to state that Pollard's punishment 
should reflect the magnitude of the treason committed. Such a 
statement is inaccurate and highly inflammatory and is nothing 
less than a demand to the court that it sentence Pollard to life 
imprisonment." 

As Robinson would have it, Weinberger's only point was that 
Pollard haa caused "severe damage" and Weinberger's "off-hand use 
of the word- 'treason' . . . does not change this fact ... " Raising a 
charge of treason cannot so facilely be dismissed as simply an 
"off-hand use of the word." Obviously, using the word "treason" 
does not "change the fact" that, in Weinberger's view, Pollard 
had caused severe damage. But what it does do, far more 
importantly, is grossly magnify and supplement that fact with a 
patently false charge. Would Robinson accept the use of the 
term "murderer" for someone who committed assault and battery on 
the grounds that the "murderer" label "does not change the fact" that the aggressor caused "severe damage" to the victim? Quoting again from Pollard's motion, "It seems unlikely that Caspar 
Weinberger, a lawyer, Secretary of Defense in the •year of the 
spy,' was unfamiliar with the legal definition of treason. It 
also strains the imagination to conceive that Weinberger was not 
fully aware of the implications of using the term •treason' to 
describe Pollard's actions ... [or] that no other lawyer reviewed 
(if not drafted) Weinberger's Declaration and thus was not fully 
cognizant that Pollard was described as committing an act that he 
did not commit." 

The second promise the government made to Pollard was that it 
would limit its allocution - its arguments and declarations 
before the court at sentencing - to the facts and circumstances 
of the case. Pollard's motion submits that the government 
breached this second promise as well by dedicating a significant 
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portion of two memor~nda submitted to the court at sentencing to a character assassination of Pollard, characterizing him as a "recidivist", "unworthy of trust", being "contemptuous of the court's activities", and describing his conduct "traitorous". Caspar Weinberger's memoranda to the court and the government's oral statement at sentencing each contained more of the same vituperatives. 

Pollard's argument was supported by a Third Circuit Court of Appeals case (y. s. v. Moscahlaidis, 1989) that dealt wi th a plea agreement conta ining virtually the same limitation on ~!locution by the prosecution. The court found in that case that the prosecution went beyond the scope of its agreement by attacking the character of the defendant. Accordingly, the Third Circuit vacated the·· sentence and remanded ·the case to ·the district court to determine whether the appropriate remedy would be to require specific performance or permit the defendant to withdraw his guilty plea. 

Judge Robinson never suggested, nor could he have, that the substance of the government's agreement in the Pollard case was di f f e rent than the government ' s a g reement in the Moscahla1d1s case c i ted by Pollard, nor d oes he attempt to r e but t h e assert ion that t he g overnment d1d 1n tact br each th is port ion ot the agreement with Po llard. Rathe r , Judge Rob1nson tocuses o n the fact that i n the Moscahla 1d1s case , un like 1n Pollard ' s case, tnc government - agreed not to t aKe dny position on sen tencing , ~h1lc in Pollard ' s case , the gove r nce nt's agreement was tha t it ~ould not ask for a life sentence . rh1s d1s t 1nct1on, one would think , ought to be ir r elevant unless Judge Robinson 1s suggest i ng tha t wheneve r the g overnment does no t agree tha t it ~ill not take a pos it ion on s e ntenc i ng, it is f r ee t o flagra nt l y violate a promise to limit allocution. Such a suggestion is ludicrous and clearly contrary to the opinion o f the Supreme Court in Santobello cited above. 

Thirdly, the government had promised to advise the court of Pollard.'s coope:r:ation·and the value of the information he provided to the government's investigation. The government, however, after telling the court of Pollard's cooperation and its importance, went on to cast aspersions on Pollard's motives for cooperating, stressing his lack of remorse and elaborating on the fact that some of Pollard's alleged co-conspirators had fled the country. This, Pollard contended, effectively discounted the value to him of the government's third promise. 

Judge Robinson's response to this argument is especially transparent since it is clearly rebutted by the language in the plea agreement between Pollard and the government, language which Robinson himself cites in his decision. Thus, on page 17 of his decision, Robinson writes, "It was no violation of the plea agreement for the Government to explain the positive value of the 
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cooperation in one sense (damage assessment) ' while also noting 
that the defendant had frustrated government efforts in another 
iense (law enforcement). The record in this case does not 
support the contention that the Government failed in its 
obligation." Had Judge Robinson read the words ·that appear in 
his own decision five pages before drawing this conclusion, he 
would have realized that there is no basis for a two tier 
analysis separating damage assessment from law enforcement. 

On page 12 of his decision, Judg~ Robinson quotes from the plea 
agr.eement the government's promise to "bring to the Court's 
attention the nature, extent and value of [~efendant's] 
cooperation and testimony ... the government has agreed to 
represent that the information Mr. Pollard has provided is of cc,nsiderable value to ·che Gove:rruuent; s damage assessment 
analysis, its investigation of its criminal case, and the 
enforcement of the espionage laws" (emphasis added). Thus, it 
clearly was a violation on the government's part to, paraphrasing _ 
Judge Robinson's words, note that Pollard had frustrated the 
government's law enforcement efforts. The representation the 
government was to make as to the importance of the information 
supplied by Pollard was plainly meant to include not only damage 
assessment but also law enforcement. The separation of these 
concepts is Judge Robipson's creation and is clearly contradicted 

. by the terms of the plea agreement. 

Pollard further argued that at sentencing, the government not 
only breached its side of the plea agreement, but also wrongly 
asserted to the court that Pollard, in giving two interviews to 
Wolf Blitzer of The ·Jerusalem Post, breached his side of the plea 
agreement. Pollard had agreed to submit any books or writings he 
authored or information he provided for the purposes of 
publication, to the Director of Naval Intelligence for pre­
publication review and deletion of information which, in the 
Director's sole discretion, is or should be classified. The plea agreement contained no procedures that Pollard was to follow. 

It must initially ce aoked whet~er tais res~riction impcs~-d on 
Pollard was meant to apply to the granting of an interview to u 
reporter with the full knowledge of prison and government 
officials. One can understand the purpose behind the screening 
of written materials to determine whether classified information 
is being disseminated. Written information could be disseminated 
publicly by a prisoner without the knowledge of prison officials. 
Books and articles also by their nature lend themselves to pre­
publication screenings. Pollard could readily comply with a 
requirement for the screening of written information by sending 
such writings by mail to the Director of Naval Intel!igence. 

In .marked contrast, the interviews given by Pollard to Blitzer 
were not, nor could they realistically have been, given without 
the government's full knowledge and consent. Wolf Blitzer 
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contacted, both orally and in writing, the warden of the prison where Pollard was imprisoned requesting to interview Pollard. Before granting the interview, Pollard executed, as he was required to do, a Department of Justice form that was filed with and protessed by the Justice Department. Blitzer interviewed Pollard on November 30, 1986 and published an article based on the first interview. In January of 1987, Blitzer requested a second interview. Pollard completed the appropriate Department of Justice forms and consent was again granted Blitzer. Thus, even though t he Department of .Justice had prior notice of both interviews and· imposed . no restrictions on them, the government later claimed that Pollard had violated the plea agreement by not liaising with the Director of Naval Intelligence. 
Pollard's motion points"to · information tl'l'at ·suggests that the government deliberately set up a restriction that Pollard could not technically comply with in order to claim that Pollard had violated the plea agreement. · In a review of Wolf Blitzer's book about the Pollard affair, Robert Friedman reports that he asked the prosecuting attorney in the Pollard case, Joseph E. DiGenova, why the government allowed Blitzer to interview Pollard. Friedman states that DiGenova "indicated that the government was fairly certain that if he were given the opportunity [the defendant] would viol~te one of the provisions of his plea agreement and talk to a journalist without first receiving permission." Although Pollard could reasonably believe that by filling out a Department of Justice form he was complying with his undertaking in the plea agreement, the government seized upon what appears to be at worst a technical violation, in order to claim a breach by Pollard and to argue before the court that Pollard breached his undertaking. 

Only in March of 1987, after Pollard was sentenced, did the Department of Justice set up procedures for Pollard's contact with members of the media and the public and only then did it specifically require that interviews with news media representatives be conducted only in writing. No similar restriction existed «t the ~.;ime of the BritzE:!r interview. Pollard complied with the only rules that existed at the time. 
Judge Robinson, again in a very perfunctory answer, finds nothing improper with the government's assertion that Pollard breached the a~eemant. Pollard gave the interview without submitting to naval intelligence the contents of his discussions with Blitzer and that, in Robinson's mind, is the end of the story. Judge Robinson completely ignores the defendant's argument that he fully complied with all prison procedures for the conduct of interviews that existed at the time of the Blitzer interviews. In fact, four oat: of the twelve sentences in Robinson• s decision that are addressed to the issue of the Jerusalem Post interviews focus on an argument that was not even raised by Pollard on appeal. At sentencing, Pollard's original counsel, Richard 
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Hibey, suggested that even if there was a technical breach by 
Pollard of the plea agreement, the information was in any- event 
n~t classified. Robinson stressed in his decision that it was of no import whether the information Pollard discloseq to Blitzer was classified. But this line of argument, i.e. ·, that non­
classified information was not subject to the pre-screening 
procedure, does not appear in the ten pages of the motions 
submitted to the court by Pollard's counsel, Hamilton Fox, that 
relate to the Jerusalem Post int~rviews. 

Perhaps Robinson focused on arguments not made to hide the fact that he was failing to address the arguments that Pollard's 
motions did make. Thus, Pollard's motion further points out that the Blitzer interviews were given four months before sentencing. If the government believed tha~ Poliard ·nad breached the plea 
agreement, it could have petitioned the court for a hearing to 
determine whether in fact the agreement had been breached. If it was found that Pollard had, in fact, breached the agreement, the 
remedy would have been to release the government from its 
promises under the plea agreement, and allow it to fully 
prosecute Pollard. The government, however, did no such thing, 
but continued to obtain the benefits of the plea agreement, 
securing Pollard's continuing cooperation and the forfeiture by 
Pollard of his constit_utional right to a trial. The government 

. then sought (quite successfully, it turns out) to deprive Pollard 
of his benefits of the plea agreement by belatedly asserting just at the time of the government's promised performance, the alleged· 
breach by Pollard f our months before. Robinson does not address this argument with even one word. 

Pollard's brief on appeal also argues that the circumstances 
under which the government linked Pollard's guilty plea with his 
wife's plea undermined his free will and rendered his plea 
involuntary. It is further argued that Judge Robinson failed to properly inquire into the voluntary nature of Pollard's plea 
agreement, as required by Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of 
Criminal Procedure. The Supreme Court has held that a defendant vhose plea has been ucc~pted in violc:.~ion of Rule 11 should be 
afforded the opportunity to plead anew. (McCarthy v. United states. 1969). 

In his decision, Robinson cites the statement of Mr. Hibey at 
sentencing that Pollard came before the Court "knowingly, and 
voluntarily enters his plea." Robinson also refers to the 
following exchange he had with Pollard at sentencing: 

Robinson: "Do you know of any reason why I shouldn't accept your 
plea?" 

Pollard: "No sir, I don't." 
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Yet, Rule 11 provides that a Court "shall not accept a plea of guilty ... without first, by addressing the defendant personally in' open court, determining that the plea is voluntary and not the result Qf force or of threats or of promises apart from the plea agreement." 

Robinson's failure to inquire of Pollard directly whether his plea was voluntary, as opposed to giving him the opportunity to ralse the issue on his own, is not merely a technical defect. Federal law pr~vides that when a defendant's plea is ma.de in consideration of a third party receiving a lenient sentence, special care must be taken and a higher standard must be applied to assure the voluntariness of the ·guilty plea. During the time when Pollard was negotiating his plea with the government, his wife was extremely ill with a debilitating gastrointestinal disorder that required continuous medical attention. Upon her arrest, in November 1985, she was held without bail in a rat and roach infested prison cell. So bad was the treatment that she lost approximately 55 pounds dur i ng the three months she was in prison. Mrs. Pollard was released on bail i n February 1986 a nd visited her husband (who r e ma i ne d 1ncarcer a ted at all t1mes follow i ng h i s a rrest ) wh1 l t he gove rnme nt waa neqot 1at1nq th plea a greeme n t w1th Kr. Pollard. Ou r 1ng th••• v1a1ta, Kr. Pollar d bec ame paint u lly awar oc tn t rr1ble cond1t1on• 1n th c ell whe r e his w1ro was 1cpr 1 on d, th pnya1c l tnro ta sno ~ subject to and the devastating pnys1c l eter1or t1on no 
suffer ed while in pri on. 

The government threatened to bring dd1t1on l charq • 4q4inst Mrs . Pollard (she was charged with oe1ng n 4CC asory tt r tho fact to he r husband's possession of national dotense docume nts and with conspiracy to r e c e i ve e mbezzled government property ) if she did not plead guilty. Mr. Pol lard teare d the effects of a prison sentence on his wife and f e l t the safest way to avoid a jail sentence for his wife would be for her to plead guilty to the initial charges brought against her. The government, 
however, linked the guilty pleas, forcing Mr. Pollard to plead guilty to the charges broug,1·i: against hiru in order to insure that his wife's life would not be endangered. 

Thus, even though Federal rules required that inquiry be made into the voluntariness of Pollard's plea and the facts 
surrounding Pollard's plea agreement screamed out for a serious examination of the possibility of coercion, the court never asked Pollard himself whether he was entering his plea voluntarily or whether the plea was the product of force, threats, or promises. 

Hamilton Fox contends in his motion that he has information that ·the classified memorandum submitted by Caspar Weinberger 
contained false or exaggerated claims about the damage done by Pollard. If this were the case, it would provide still further grounds for withdrawal of Pollard's guilty plea. Accordingly, 
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Fox made a supplementary motion that he be granted access to the 
classified portion of· Weinberger's memoranda. 

In rejecting this motion as well, Judge Robinson relied on a 1984 
Fifth circuit case, United States v. Lewis. in which the circuit 
court upheld the district court's refusal to allow a defendant's 
newly retained counsel access to a pre-sentence report. The 
court cited the following factors in its refusal to allow access. 
{l) The defendant "alleged no facts to show that the sentence was 
a gross abuse of discretion". (2) Lack of access did not prevent 
defendant's counsel from presenting the information cont ained in 
the pre-sentence report - defendant's background and record. (3) 
Th• defendant himself had read the report and there was no . 
allegation that he did not remember or understand the report. . . . . 
Robinson argues that, "Each of the factors identified in Lewis 
apply with some force here." In fact,~ of the factors cited 
by the court in Lewis are applicable in Pollard's case. Robinson 
declares that, "The sentence here was well within the court's 
discretion." The standard set forth by the court in Lewis 
however, is not whether the court has discretion to issue the 
particular sentence, but whether the sentence was a "gross abuse 
of discretion." The statute under which Pollard was sentenced 
does in fact provide for punishment by "imprisonment for any term 
of years or for life.~ But one must recall that the statute • 
includes within its net, on the one hand, individuals whose 
espionage activities are designed to injure the United States, 
and on the 9ther hand, individuals whose espionage activities ~re 
geared to providing only an advantage to a foreign nation. 
Individuals who commit espionage on behalf of adversaries of the 
United states cannot help but also have reason to believe that it 
is to be used to the injury of this country. The same cannot be 
said of individuals who commit espionage on behalf of American 
allies. It is, therefore, not surprising that before Jonathan 
Pollard, nobody convicted under this statute who passed 
classified information to an ally of the United States ever 
received a aentence even remotely close to life imprisonment. 
And, one auat again renember, of thoPe individuals convicted of 
upionage ,for American adversaries, only the most no~orious 
received life sentences. Sentencing Pollard to life was in fact, 
a "gross abuse of discretion." 

As to the second factor, unlike in Lewis, where lack of access to 
the pre-sentence report clearly did not prevent defendant's 
counsel from presenting information about which the defendant had 
first-hand knowledge - his own background and record, in the 
Pollard case, the information was classified communications 
between Weinberger and Robinson that were seen only by Pollard's 
.first counsel. And in total contrast with the third factor 
mentioned in Lewis, Jonathan Pollard never saw the classified 
memorandum submitted by Weinberger. 
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Whether or not Judge Robinson had the discretionary authority to 
deny Pollard's counsel access to the Weinberger memorandum, one 
must wonder why, in light of allegqti9ns that the classified 
memorandum contained exaggerated or false infor~atjon, Judge 
Robinson would choose to exercise that discretionary autpority to 
deny a defendant who has been sentenced to serve the rest of his 
life in jail the opportunity to examine and rebut damning 
testimony presented to the sentencing judge. 

Hamilton Fox suggests .in a supplemental memorandum that the 
government may have deliberately provided Judge Robinson with ex 
parte information the government knew to be false in order to 
prejudice Judge Robinson against Mr. Pollard. Pollard presented 
to the court a sworn affidavit from Professor Alan Dershowitz 
that relates the substance of a conversation Dershowitz had with 
former Supreme court Justice Arthur Goldberg. Dershowitz 
declares that Goldberg reportedly told Dershowitz that in a 
discussion Goldberg had with Judge Robinson about the Pollard 
affair, Judge Robinson stated that he had been provided by the 
government with evidence that Pollard had given Israel, American 
satellite photographs that proved that Israel had tested Jericho 
missiles in South Africa and had provided South Africa with 
missile and nuclear technology. Dershowitz further declared that 
Goldberg told him tha~ Robinson admitted to Goldberg that the 
alleged Israel-South African connection had weighed heavily in 
Robinson's decision to impose a life sentence. 

After being assured by Hamilton Fox that there was no truth 
whatsoever in the claim that Pollard had provided Israel with any 
documents evidencing a purported Israel-South African connection 
(Pollard himself adamantly denied having provided Israel with 
such information and Pollard and Richard Hibey, Pollard's first 
counsel, each stated that no reference to any such documents was 
made in any of the materials shown to them by the government), 
Dershowitz wrote a letter to Goldberg (which Dershowitz attached 
to his affidavit) to advise him of this fact. (In his letter, 
Dershowitz referred to the substance of his previous conversation 
with Gold~~rg.) A few days later, Dershowitz phoned Goldberg to 
discu~s the letter. In relating . the substance of Goldberg's 
remarks, Dershowitz declared in his affidavit, "He told me that 
if my facts were correct, then the Justice Department had 
improperly •pandered' [that was his precise word] to Judge 
Robinson's racial sensitivities as a Black judge by providing him 
with false, inflammatory, ex parte information." Justice 
Goldberg told Dershowitz that he would pursue with Attorney 
General Thornburgh this alleged misconduct by the government 
prosecutors. Goldberg however, died four days later. 

A defendant has the cor.stitutional right not to be sentenced on 
the basis of false information and, prior to sentencing must be 
given the opportunity to rebut any challenged informati~n. If a 
defendant can show that information before the sentencing court 
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was false and that the Court relied on the false information in 
passing sentence, the · sentence must be set aside. Thus, if the 
substance of Dershowitz's affidavit is accurate, Pollard's 
sentence must be set aside. Moreover, again assuming the 
accuracy 'of the Dershowitz affidavit, Judge Robinson should have, 
as Pollard argued, withdrawn from any role in the Pollard case 
s i nce he was rendered partial by false ex parte information. 

Rob i nson denied that the ex parte communication described in the 
Dershow i tz aff idavit actually occurred. Accordingly, Robinson 
den i ed the defendant's motion that Robinson disqualify ~imself 
f rom the case and also denied Pollard's motion that the defendant 
be allowed to withdraw his plea on the basis of the . facts alleged 
i n the Oershowitz affidavit. 

It is interesting to note that while Robi nson denied that the~ 
parte communication described in Dershowitz's affidavit actually 
occurred, he does not confirm or deny the substance of his 
alleged discussion with Justice Goldberg. One would be 
especially surprised to learn that Alan Dershowitz, one of the 
most respected law professors in the country, would perjure 
himself as to his recollection of his conversation with Justice 
Goldberg, or that Dershowitz would have fabricated the letter he 
wrote to Goldberg that refers to the Robinson-Goldberg and 
Goldberg-Dershowitz conversations. One would also be surprised· 
to learn that Justice Goldberg, who had not previously taken a 
position in support of Pollard, would knowingly misrepresent to 
Dershowitz his discussions with Robinson. 

While there could have been some misunderstanding or 
miscommunication, there is certainly a strong possibility that 
the facts stated in Dershowitz's affidavit are totally accurate 
and the false and prejudicial ex parte communication between the 
government and Robinson did in fact take place. It is therefore 
most disappointing that Judge Robinson also denied Pollard's 
motion for a hearing and discovery as to whether the ex parte 
contact between the government and Robinson described in 
O.rahowitz•s affidavit did in fact take place. 

The lite sentence imposed on Jonathan Pollard was the product of 
Secretary ot Defense Weinberger•s antagonism towards Israel, a 
government prosecution team that was not merely overzealous but 
th~t also carried out its duties in bad faith and a judge who 
failed to protect the defendant against prosecutorial abuses. 
Whether or not Judge Robinson was improperly influenced by the 
alleged ex parte information referred to in the Dershowitz 
affidavit, the facts strongly suggest that Robinson failed to 
protect the constitutional rights of Jonathan Pollard and grossly 
abused the court's discretion in imposing a life sentence. 
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The Court of Appeals will be reviewing the manner in which the 
government prosecuted Pollard and will determine whether . Judge 
Robinson erred in denying Pollard's motion to withdraw his guilty 
plea. But, if one wants to cut through all the legalese, all the 
motions, memoranda, answers and decisions, and stiil be able to 
determine for himself whether a serious miscarriage of justice 
has been committed in the Pollard case, one need only compare the 
manner in which our Defense and Justice Departments dealt with 
Jonathan Pollard and how it dealt with Abdelkader Helmy. 

Helmy, an Egyptian born American citizen was cleared for secret 
work .at a weapons plant in California. Last year he was arrested 
for illegally exporting to Egypt 420 pounds of a material used in 
stealth aircrafts, missiles and rockets. The materials exported 
to Egypt were meant to Pe used as pa~t of a joint weapons 
production by Egypt and, of all countries, Iraq. Although Helmy 
could have been charged with espionage, he was eventually 
indicted on a single count of smuggling due to the State 
Department's desire to maintain cordial relations with Egypt. 

If Israel had acted on the kind ot classitiad in!ot'lDation 
provided Israel by Pollard about Iraq, t.h• united Statoa and tho 

world community would not now be 1v1nq 1n tear ot th us by 

Saddam Hussein of his chemical .eapona. In ~rked controat, n~d 
-Helmy•s plan succeeded, Iraq1 =1aa1 ••• eManced w1tn A: r1c n • 
technology provided by H l~y, .ou nov be a1 d t tho Al:l r ~~n 
troops in Saudi Arabia. Helmy rec 1v d a a ntonc• or nd r : ~ 
years; Pollard rece1ved ll e. Ha ) U t1ce been orvod ! 

oav1d Kirshenbaum, £ q. 
3308 Fourth Street 
Oceanside, New York 11572 
(212) 830-26alt) 
(516) 764-6995 
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I THE UNIVERSITY OF NOTRE DAME 

International Committee on Laboratory Animals 
Comite International sur /es Animaux de Laboratoire 
Virus Reference Centre 
Centre de Reference sur Jes Virus 

Rabbi Alexander M. Schindler 
Union of American Hebrew Congregations 
838 Fifth Avenue 
New York, New York 10021 

Dear Rabbi Schindler, 

Mailing address: 
Lobund Laboratory 
University of Notre Dame 
Notre Dame, Indiana 46556, U.S.A. 
Telephone : (219) 239-7564 

Our son Jonathan has expressed his great pleasure on 
your correspondence with him. His outgoing mail is uncertain 
in that much of it goes through censors in Washington. 

We are much concerned for him after 5 years in a solitary 
environment, earlier for 10½ months in a mental hospital in 
Springfield, Missouri, in which Prison Director stated that he 
was not there as a patient; and more recently in Marion, Illinois. 

You may know that a Motion For Withdrawal of The Guilty Plea 
was denied by Judge Aubrey Robinson; and now it is being prepared 
for appeal. The Motion was based on legal violations which were 
found in the court record. The spec i fics are defined in the en­
closed essay by David Kirshenbaum, Esq. More recently, Dr. Lawrence 
Korb published a statement on Caspar Weinberger which was highly 
uncomplimentary. In response to my query on Weinberger, Dr. Korb 
made a very succinct statement (enclosed), which confirms our 
suspicions that the sentence was "unfair. 11 Judge Robinson admitted 
that while Weinberger was biased, his Memorandum to the Court was 
instrumental in determining a life sentence for Jonathan. This 
Memorandum was denied to our attorneys which was disturbing to 
Lee Hamilton. 

I have enclosed a set of documents relative to the above 
references. 

We are concerned that Jonathan was 11 sandbagged," in the 
words of his attorney. He was assured of leniency if he cooperated 
in effecting damage control. Having done so the Government admitted 
that he revealed much information previously unknown, which was 
then used to assess the life sentence. We hope that the exercise 
of true justice will prevail. 
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Page Two 
Rabbi Alexander M. Schindler 

This is not a Jewish problem. it concerns .a.miscarriage 
of justice1as guaranteed by our Constitution. ·constitutional 
guarantees of due process were abandoned. While one person is 
in prison under such circumstances, no one is secure. If 
Jonathan is in prison for having "made Israel too strong," what should happen to those in the U~S. Government who contributed to 
the brutish strength of Iraq? 

· we are blessed with -help from many quarters, by individuals 
exemplified by Fr. Theodore Hesburgh and Philip Klutznick who 
recognized defects in the prosecution of this case from its onset. 

Thank you again for your kind communication with our son. 

MP:cr 
enclosure(s) 

Sincerely yours, 

Morris Pollard 
Coleman Professor 
and Director 
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Honorable Lee H. Hamilton 
House of Representatives 
\vushington, o.c. 

Dear Congressman Hamilton: 

FEB t .5 1989 • 

Thank you for your letter of January 23, 1989, with the 
attached correspondence from your constituent, Mrs. Polla~d, 
whose son, Jonathan Pollard, is currently incarcerated at the 
United States Penitentiary, Marion, Illinois. 

In lier letter, Mrs. Pollard requests statistical data regarding 
the types and . numbers of bed space available at the United 
States Medical Center for Federal Prisoners, Springfield, 
Missouri. Mrs. Pollard's purpose for requesting the 
information is to "determine if [the] facility could have 
prov idetl a place for [ their] son other than the psychL:itry 
ward." The information could certuinly be provided, however, 
it would serve little purpose in answering Mrs. Pollard's 
question. Jonathan Pollard wns admitted to Springfield shortly 
after his commitment to the I3ureau of Prisons. Mr. Pollard was 
housecl in an area of the .i.nstitution that provided the 
appropriate level of security and protection. This same area 
of tile institution also provides the secu1·ity level required 
for some psychiatric evaluation cases. Mr. Pollard, however, 
was never classified or managed as a psycl1iatric patient. 

1 f you have ncltli tional questions, plense clo not hesitate 
contacting us. 

Sincer.eJy, 

J. Michael Quinlc1n 
LJircctor 
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Dr. Mcrris Pollard 
Lobund Laboratory 
University of Notre Dame 
Notre Dame, IN 46556 

Dc:ir Dr. Pollard, 

September 24, 1990 

0!.N..:At-.11 :-4 ,\ GILt.~,\tJ N t.·1 YOAll 

f.0C E 1T J LAGOM~R!;INO. C,nooA:4:11. 

J il.1 lf,\CJ I IC .-JA 

TOCY P.OT H, '.V1~cc-. :.1t1 

Ol rMFIA J StlOVIE MA.ml 
l l(UO Y J ltYCE. lt ~l l'f OIS 

CCUG OE11!: Ul E:l. t~ t: tJ >\ A:lIA 

( h;;1 5 • ur1~. ~n H !: f.~ IT~I. N~ w J lA';f't 

M<'HA!'".l Ct ',".'ltJ~ . ~ 1110 

c .. , :--. uvnr-:-::~ -.:· .. m, 
J•·.rJ r.;: 'l'C~S 1(1.••:.."s 

c~:: \LO ~ ·n-., l ·' Lt..:X.fl":S. Ciuo 
1.'t 'IO i.AZ Vv.1. \1 
-':l~C:l G~\Lll.'.\.iLY. C"'L :rcnN1.1. 
At,:O ilCt;C1f7:JN . t~:w Y..:r.J. 
f"l~R 7[rl .I GOSS. H Oll iOA 

n .. E/WA nos LCHT:NCN. f-lomo.\ 

J:::)HN R. stnCUd!l 
M:ucn1TT Ct-!1H er Su,, 

Thnnk )'OU for your letter of Septcmb~r 16th to which you 2.tt::ich:~d a copy of 
tr.e Kore art1de frcm the ,v~shin<J!O 1 :vronthl).'.. I look forward to perusing it. 

.I 

I agree with you that the \Veinberg2r statement was a key c ocu~ent and tho.t 
your lawyers should have had acc-~ss to foe document, especially when they had 
obtained the appropriate clearances. That would appear to be an extr~ordinary 
denial. 

I appreciate ycur keeping me inforn:ed. I know that the ieg:i.l process 
continues and I hope you will stay in touch. I would like to be l\elpful if ~ can. 

\Vith b~st reg::i.rds, 

SincMl y, 

(J 
~fl.._ 

Lee H. Hamilton 
Chairman 
Subcommittee on Eu rope 

and the Middle East • 



The Brookings Institution 
l]3 

1775 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE N.W. / WASHINGTON O.C. 20036-2188 / TELEPHONE: (202) 797-6000 

Center for Public Policy Education' 

Mr. Morris Pollard 
Coleman Professor and Director 
Lobund Laboratory 
University of Notre Dame 
Notre Dame, Indiana 46556 

Dear Professor Pollard: 

October 19, 1990 

It was with great•sadness and empathy that I read your letter of Septem~er 24 , 1990. It must be so very difficult for you to deal with your son's situa tion. 

I am not aware of exactly what Weinberger told the Court about the impact of the infor:nation Jonathan passed to Israel. I do _know that Weinberger had an almost visceral dislike of Israel and the special place it occupies in our foreign policy. In my opinion, the severity of the sentence that Jonathan received was out of proportion to his alleged offense. 

I wish there were something I couJd do to help you, but I am afraid all I can offer you are my prayers and empathy. 

Sincerely, 

__/ ~ /~.__ 
(/ ·L:wrertfe J. Korb 

Di rel:"tor 

CABLES : BROOKIN ST / FAX TELEPHO NE: ( :!02) 797-6004 



Cap the ][(nave 
Reagans longtime secretary of defense is out to re·write history 

by Lawrence J. Korb 
The appointment of Caspar Weinberger, Cap the 

Knife. as secretary of defense in early 1981 was hailed 
by both supporters and critics of the incoming Reagan 
administration. The conventional wisdom was that 
Weinberger, \\ ho had served with apparent distinction 
in such key jobs as dir::ctor of the 0MB and secretary 
of HEW in the Nixoa-Ford ye:!rs. w::1.5 the rig:-it choice 
to manage the cdense buildup begun by Carter and 
certain to be ccntinued by the hard-line Reagan ad­
ministration. Moreover, unlike some of Reagan ·s other 
appointees. We~nbcrger was believed to be a moderate 
a!ld a pra~st ~ther than a zealot-that is. a man 
who woufd work well with other members of the na­
tional security team and Congress. Indeed. this reputa­
tion was the reason I eagerly accepted \Veinberger·s 
offer to become his ;issistilllt secretary of defense for • 
manpower, reserve affairs. and logistics, a post I he!d 
until September 1935. 

'wnen Weinbe~ger L:ft office i:1 November I 987, af­
ter.serving longer than all but or.e (Rc!::ert McN::unara) 
or'his 14 predecessors. his reputat ion was in t:ltters. 
The defense buildup proceeded without .my dearly de­
fined sense of strategy or purpose; the Pentagon was 
racked by some of the most severe procurement scan­
dals in its history; and the defense budget and progrr.ms 
that he bequeathed to his successor. Frank Carlucci, 
were so far out of b::ila.nce that his five-year plan had a 
shortfall of $500 billion. (In his first momh in office, 
Carlucci had 10 make some $200 billion in reductions.) 

Weinberger proved himself so narrow-minded. ob­
durate. and rigid that he lost the confidence of 
Congress and ultimately of the president himself. 

L.,a,.·,cnce J. Korh is direcroc of rhc Center for P11/J!i,: Policy Ed­
ucarion and a senior Jc/loll' for Foreign Policy Sr11d1es <1/ the 
Brnol.ings /nsrw,rivn. 

50 The \VJ.-'>hing1on Momhly/Scp,cmh<!r 1990 

Congress slashed Weinberger's proposed budgets and 
passed-over his objections, but with the support of 
the president-the most sweeping rcorganiz:ition of 
the Dep::irtment of Defense in history. the Goldwater­
Nichols Act of 1986. President Reagan. Weinberger's 
long-time mentor, was forced to appoint the Scowcroft 
Commission to str~ighten out the mess Weinberger 
had m;ide of the str::i.tegic modernization program and 
the Packard Commission to straighten out the mess 
Weinberger had made of the procurement system. 

I found Weinberger exceedingly difficult to work 
for. He seemed to have fixed ideas on every issue, and 
those who did not accept his interpretation of the facts 
were bram!ed as disloyal. His staff meetings, like his 
press conferences and congressional appearances, 
rarely involved two-way conversation. Weinberger 
seemed to feel tlrnt if he repented an opinion often 
enough. repetition ulone would make it come true. 

'.Veinberger's memoir* ta.lees tvbnichaeism and hy­
;;erbole to an extreme. Individu:11s who support his 
world view are described in such glowing terms that it 
is almost sickening. His hero, Ronald Reagan, is mag­
nificent, warm. decer.t. selfless, patient and politically 
courageous, easy to brief, extraordinarily finn, and 
possessed of phenomenal memory. Even Ed Mc::sc is 
described as well-informed and effective in argument. 
On the other hand, members of Congiess or the ad­
ministration who opposed Weinberger or the president 
represent nanow parochial interests or special interest 
groups, and are ultimately disloyal. 

\'/einberger's Manichaeism and hyperbole also ex­
tend to nations. their leaders, and intem:1ticnal events. 
The Soviet lbion is and always will be the evil em-
*Fighti11~ for ?race: Se,·en Crirical Years in rite Pc:1rago11. Cas­
par W~i11bcrgcr. l>dmcr Dooks . S2.J.95. 



' ,. 
·I 
i 

I 

l 
' ' 

i 
i 
l 
l 

1 • 

'i 
,I 
I 

·1 

.,\ 

pire, whose mili tary power is still increasing despite 
the collapse of the Warsaw Pact. The Shah of Iran 's 
fall ·resulted from U.S. harassment and demands that 
he release his political prisoners. On the other hand, 
Weinberger holds the Ayatollah responsible for the 
war with Iraq, even though Iraq attacked first. More­
over, he asserts that Iran was able to hold its own in 
the war only because Iraq h::id decided it did not want 
to commit the substantial resources required for a mil ­
itary victory. The former secretary convenient ly for­
gets that Iraq resorted even to chemical weapons. 

Most memoirs are somewhat self-serving. but 
Weinberger carries his to the extreme. In the opening 
chapter, he portrays himself as reluctantly taking up 
Reagan's offer to become secret:i.ry of defense. when 
in fact he campaifned vigorously for a high-level post 
with the president-elect. Throughout the book. he 
simply dismisses the problems that pla~ued his tenure 
in office and undennmed support for t1ation:i.l defense. 

Weir.berger is at his disingenuous best in his lra.1-
contra discussion. He blames the whole affair on the 
incompetence of McF:i.rlane, conveniently overlook­
ing the fact that he joined Clark. Meese. and Casey to 

• block Jim Baker's appointment as national security 
!!,dviser. ,._making McFarlane's appointment possible. 
More seriously, he ignores the implications of the fac t 

that-4nbeknown to the president and ilic other mem­
bers of the national securitY. est.iblishrnem-\Vein­
berger had contemporaneous intelligence. reports 
about the secret l\ovember 1985 arms shipment to 
Iran. as these memoirs reveal. 

Why did Weinberger not act upon this knowledge, 
given his adamant opposition to sending arms to Iran? 
Why did he tell the Senate Select Commi:ree on Intel­
ligence t!;iat he did not 'team about the C1A shipment 
of arms to Iran until early 1986? ' 

The answer ·to both questions is thai Weinberger 
basicaily is not the person he appears 10 be. Had he 
acted upon his knowledge of the November 1985 
shipment. he would have jeopardized his place in the 
administration or jeopardized the R..-:ag:m ::dminisrrn­
tion itself. Given his zealous devotion to Reagan a!ld 
his agenda. he could do neither. Just as he i,gnored the 
incoavenient facts that undermined tl::! case for his 
defense buildup and the weaknesses cf his m:i.nage­
ment style in the Pentagon. he ignored the intelli­
gence r.!ports and may even have perjured himself 
before Congress. Ironically, a book he wrote to vindi­
cate himself confirms our \\'Orst fears a~ut him and 
makes me wonder how so many (inclu~ing me ) could 
have been so mistaken about his ai;pointmer.t in 
198 I. 0 

The Logic oi 
Congressional Action 

Now 1wilil,1b!e in paperback 

R. Douglas Arnold 

)In this imporcanr and o riginal 
~ok, R. Douglas Arnold offers a 
theory that explai ns how 
legislators make decisions across 
the whole r:mge of domesric 
policy, showing why organized 
interests frequently triumph and 
why the_ general public some­
times wins. 

"This will be one of the most 
influential books on Congress­
and hence on American poli­
tics-for the next ten vears. •• 
-Richard F. Fenno , 

"No student of Congress can 
ignore this work."-D::iviJ 
Mayhew $:>.9.95 

Yale University Press 
Dcpc. 3777, 1)2;\ Yale Su. 
Nc.:w I Ln·n. CT 06520 

------. ------ ------

Slgnals frnm the Mm 
Cong1·cssio1:.zi 01•emghr 111:d tht' 
C/;,1,'fmgt' uf Soci,d Regul,uion 
Christopher H. Foreman. Jr: 
Combining analvsis anJ 
anecdote, Christ-opher H. 
Foreman.Jr. looks inrn the 
oversight cools ::ivai!Jbk ro 
Cong;ess, rhc v:iriety of inreresr 
groups involved. and rhe 
perso n.ti nl't\\'orks char afl;:cr 
rebrions hc.:rwc.:c.:n rhem . 

'Torem::in has mad:: a solid 
contribu1ion toward undcr­
st::indin<> rhe nature of dav-to­
d:i.y con;rcssion.d ovc.:rsiLiht." 
-f1'f1·rd~tr l.oomi~, }011n;,t! o( 
l'oliti<'J 
\\"iJlll f'/' oj'tf,c J lj,\'11 n. H_ f l,m/,,_ 

11 ,., 11 /';·i_·,•. s1,on .,,11 ,·rl hr 1/1,· 

l._r11tlo11 Ni,i;ll', j11IJJ1so,; !.ilmirv 
$ I l.':) 5 
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Political A.mbition 
~Vho Decirll's to Run far Congress 
Lind .1 L. Fowler and 
Robert 0. \ !cClure 
How do politicians decide 
wherher or not to run for 
C ongress? Using extensive 
interviews and analvsc:s of 
district data and op,inion polls. 
f-0\vler ::ind ~!cClurc look at 
wh :1r moti\·;uc.:s some imiividu.11s 
ro emer a I lo use.: r:1i.:c.: .i:1J wlw 
orhc.:rs chon~<.: to rem.1 i:1 on the 
~iJc.:linc.:~. 

"A splendid reminder 1h:u 
politics is really che 1110:it 

human of <.:mkavors. :mJ 
nothin<> is more cen cr:i! to irs 
hulllan~lilllension than p!.1in 
old ambirion."-D.1\·id '.'. 
lhnd:.:r, !lw \\'~tsl1i11g1011 l'osr 
SL!. 1) 5 
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The M.otion To Withdraw 
Pollard's Guilty Plea 

By David Kirshenbaum, Esq. 
Earlier th.is year, Jonathan Pollard's defense coun­

sel, Hamilton P. Fox, ill, submitted to the District Court 
in Washington, D.C. a motion to withdraw Pollard's 
guilty plea. I received a copy of the motion from Jona­
than's father, Dr. Morris Pollard, who suggested that the 
readers of THE JEWISH PRESS would be interested in 
learning the cont_ents of this motion. 

As a brief background, Jonathan Pollard pied 
guilty to one count of conspiracy to violate a Federal 
statute that prohibits a.person from communicating to a 
foreign government information relating lo the national 
def cnse, either with intent or reason to believe that the 
information will be used to the injury of the United States 
or to the advantage of a foreign nation. 

Pollard was never charged with intent to injure the 
United States. He was charged with "having intent and 
reason to believe that the [information] would be used to 
the advantage of Israel. .. " 

In March, 198 7, Pollard was sentenced to life 
imprisonment, with the sentencing judge adding a 
recommendation ihat Pollard never be paroled. 

This sentence was a travesty and perversion of 
justice that raises numerous unavoidable and troubling 
questions. 

. What was it about the Pollard affair that resulted in 
a sentence that was not only grossly deviant from sent­
ences meted out to other individuals who passed classi­
fied information to American allies, but even more harsh 
than the punishments imposed on Americans who spied 
for American adversaries, causing massive damage, 
including the compromising of American operntives in 
Communist countrie,s and the death of Americans. 

As Allen Dershowitz has argued over the past few 
months, "History provides, at least, some relevant 

parameters which allow one to conclude, with reasona­
ble confidence, that if comparable information had been 
provided by a French-American to F ranee or a Swedish­
American to Sweden, it is unlikely that the sentence 
would have been as severe." 

One must also ask what benefit Pollard received by 
pleading guilty to the charges against him, fully cooper­
ating with the government in its investigation and saving 
the government the expense of a trial. 

Not since the Rosenbergs passed to the Soviet 
Union, during the Korean War and the height of the 
Cold War, classified information about America's 
atomic weapons program, has anyone been executed in 
this country for espionage activities. 

The execution • of the Rosenbergs, of course, 
remains highly controversial even today and none of the 
Americans who spied for the Russians since have 
received death sentences. It is therefore safe to assume 
that a death sentence was not a real option in the Pollard 
case. 

Thus, in the world of real possibilities, what could 
have been a worse result than a life sentence with a 
recommendation against parole? 

The motion submitted by Pollard's counsel persua­
sively argues that one reason Pollard did not receive any 
benefit from the pica agreement was because the 
government violated the plea agreement in three ways . 

The government promised that it would not ask for 
a life sentence but rather would limit its recommendation 
to asking for a "substantial" sentence. 

Notwithstanding this promise, Secretary of 
Defense Caspar Weinberger submitted two declaration!" 
lo the sentencing court (the first being classified an, 
detailing the nature and extent of the purported har1 
Pollard may have caused to national security) that coul 
plainly be interpreted as advocating a life sentencr. 

(Continued on page 4! 
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Weinberger, for example, wrote in his declaration 
o the court the day before sentencing, "It is difficult for 
ne, even in the so-called 'year of the spy' to conceive of 
:realer har!11 to national security than that caused by the 
lcfendant..." 

The "year of the' spy" ref ~rred lo by Weinberger 
:1clucled the conviction of John Walker who sold secrets 
o the Soviet Union for 17 years and received a ·life 
entence. 

As Pollard's motion argues, in staling to the court 
1is opinion that Pollard caused greater harm lo national 
ccurity than the_ likes of a John Walker, Weinberger 
1• as sending a ve_ry clear message to the _sentencing 
1dge. If Walker got life and Pollard caused as mu.ch or 
:realer damage to national security, Pollard too should 
eceive a life sentence. 

The government was clearly and improperly using 
he \V einberger memoranda to circumvent perhaps the 
nost important promise ·of the plea agreement. The 
.V einberger memoranda, in fact, probably had more 
,ersuasive value than had the same arguments been 
nade by the prosecuting attorney. 

The Pollard motion gives examples of a number of 
nflamrnatory inaccuracies in Weinberger's memoranda 
ind Pollard's counsel contends in the motion that he has 
nformation that the classified memorandum contained 
alse or exaggerated claims about the damage done by 
\,llard. 

Were this true, it would provide further grounds for 
,·ithdrnwing the guilty plea. 

The government however, has been dragging its 
eel in providing Pollard's counsel with access to the full 
ext of Weinberger's classified declaration. 

The government also argued that it would limit its 
1rguments before the court to the facts and circumstan­
:es of the case. Jt did not do so, but rather dedicated a 
;ignificant portion of two memoranda submitted to the 
:ourl at sentencing to a character assassination of Pol­
!ard, characterizing him as a "recidivist." "un~orthy of 

trust," being "contemptuous of the court's activities," 
and calling his conduct "traitorous." 

Caspar Weiberger's memoranda to the court and 
the government's oral statement" at sentencing each con­
tained more of the same vituperatives. 

Thirdly, the government had promised to advise 
the court of Pollard's cooperation and the value of the 
information he provided to the government's investiga­
tion. 

The government, however, after telling the court of 
Pollard's cooperation and its importance, went on to cast 
aspersions on Pollard's motives for cooperating, stress­
ing his lack of remorse and elaborating on the fact that 
some of Pollard's alleged co-conspirators had fled the 
country. 

This effectively discounted the value to Pollard of 
the government's third promise. 

At sentencing, the government not only breached 
its side of the plea agreement, but argued that Pollard 
broke his undertaking by giving two interviews to Wolf 
Blitzer of The Jerusalem Post. 

But as Pollard's motion clearly establishes, "Not 
only did the Department of Justice lmow of the interview, 
it approved and facilitated it." 

Furthermore, the Blitzer interviews were given four 
months before sentencing. If the government believed 
that Pollard had breached the plea agreement, its 
remedy at that point should have been to petition the 
court for a hearing lo determine whether in fact the 
agreement had been breached. 

If it was found that Pollard had, inf act, breached 
the agreement, the remedy would have been to release 
the government from its promises under the plea agree­
ment, and allow it to fully prosecute Pollard. 

The government, however, did no such thing in 
November, but continued to obtain the benefits of the 
plea agreement, securing Pollard's continuing coopera­
tion and the forfeiture by Pollard of his constitutional 
right to a trial. 

The government then sought ( quite successfully, it 
turns out) to deprive Pollard of his benefits of the plea 

agreement by belatedly asserting just at the time of the 
. ·, · 

government's promised performance, the alleged breach 
by Pollard four months before. 

Finally, Pollard's motion points out that Federal 
rules of criminal procedure require that a judicial inquiry 
be made into the voluntariness of a guilty plea. 

Moreover, when pleas are linked or when the 
defendant's guilty plea is made in consideration of a third 
party receiving a lenient sentence, special care must be 
taken and a higher standard must be applied to assure 
the voluntariness of a guilty plea. 

Anyone familiar with the Pollard case is well aware 
of the terrible conditions in the cell where Jonathan's 
wife, Anrie, was imprisoned following her arrest, the 
physical threats she was subject to and the devastating 
physical deterioration she suffered while in prison. 

The government threatened to bring additional 
charges against her (she was charged with being an 
accessory after the fact to her husband's possession ·of 
national defense documents and with conspiracy lo 
receive embezzled government property) if she did not 

plead guilty. . 
Jonathan feared the effects of a prison sentence on 

his wife and felt the safest way lo avoid a jail sentence for 
Anne would be for her to plead guilty lo the initial 
charges brought against her. 

The government, however, linked the guilty pleas, 
forcing Jonathan to plead guilty to the charges brought 
against him in order to insure that his wife's Ii( e would not 
be endangered. 

Thus, even though Federal rules required that 
inquiry be made into the voluntariness of Pollard's plea 
and the facts surrounding Pollard's plea agreement 
screamed out for a serious examination of the possibility 
of coercion, the court relied solely on the statement of 
Pollard's counsel at the time of sentencing, and never 
asked Pollard himself whether he was entering his plea 
voluntarily or whether the plea was the product of force, 
threats, or promises. 

Pollard's petition to the court makes a powerful 
case, and it can only be hoped that justice will finally be 
done and that the court will grant Pollard's motion and 
permit him to withdraw his guilty plea . 
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838 FIFTH AVENUE, NEW YORK , N.Y. 10021-7064 
TEL: (212) 249-0100, FAX: (212) 517-7968 

OF AMERICA A n A ffilia te of t he Union of American Hebrew Congregations 

0: HARRIS GILBERT · 

FROM: DEBORAH SIEGEL~ 

CC: DAVID SAPERSTEIN✓ 

Just prior to the ARZA Executive Committee meeting on 
Sunday, January 27, Norman Schwartz received the enclosed 
letter from Jonathan Pollard requesting ARZA to file an 
amicus brief on his behalf. After discussion by the 
Executive Committee, it was decided that the proper UAHC body 
to consider this issue is the Social Act i on Commission and 
therefore we are forwarding the request to you. In your 
commi ttee's de l iberations, we would appreciate your considerat i on 
of the attached Resolution wh i ch was passed by the ARZA National 
Board in November, 1988. 

DS/j kl 

Enc. 
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RESOLUTION 
ANNE & JONATHAN POLLARD 

WHEREAS, serious questions have been raised regarding the sentencing 
procedure and conditions of incarceration of Jonathan Pollard~- for 
life without parole, and 

WHEREAS, wea r~ seriously concerned about the treatme nt being received 
by Anne Hend e~ son PolJard, dLlring her incarceration, ~specially in 
view of her serious medical condition, therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Executive Board of ARZA urges the UAHC Board 
,and other affiliated Reform organizations to be~ome fully acquainted 
with the sentencing and incarceration conditions of the Pollards and, 
if warranted, to use its good offites to encourage the United States 
government to reevaluate the Pollard sentencing, and to insure that 
they be treated with fairness and equity during their incarceration. 

Date 03/15/89 

passed by ARZA National Board 
November 7, 1988 

1 
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RABBI ALEXANDER M. SCHINDLER e UNION OF AMERICAN HEBREW CONGREGATIONS 
PRESIDENT 838 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK, N.Y. 10021 

September 17, 1990 
27 Elul 5750 

Mr. Jonathan Pollard/09185-016 
P.O. Box 1000 
Marian, IL 62959 

Dear Mr. Pollard: 

(2121 249-0100 

Just a note to advise that your letter of August 16th 
to Rabbi Schindler was received this morning. 

He is out of the office today, and will not return 
until next week. Thus, I write merely to acknowledge 
receipt of your letter and to extend warm good wishes 
for a good New Year. 

Needless to note your letter will be brought to Rabbi 
Schindler's attention on his return. 

Sincerely, 

Edith J. Miller 
Assistant to the President 
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The Motion To Withdraw 
Pollard's Guilty Plea 

------------· ...:.''---------- parameters which allow one to conclude, with reasona-
B y David Kirshenbaum, Esq. ble confidence, that if comparable information had been 

Earlier this year, Jonathan Pollard's defense coun­
sel, Hamilton P. Fox, III, submitted to the D_istrict Court 
in Washington, D.C. a motion to withdraw Pollard's 
guilty plea. I received a copy of the motion from Jona­
than's father, Dr. Morris Pollard, who suggested thatthe 
readers of THE JEWISH PRESS would be interested in 
learning the contents of this motion. 

As a brief background, Jonathan Pollard pied 
guilty to one count of conspiracy to violate a Federal 
statute that prohibits a person from communicating to a 
foreign government information relating td the national 
defense, either with intent or reason to believe that the 
information will be used to the injury of the United States 
or to the advantage of a foreign nation. 

Pollard was never charged w-ith intent to injure the 
United States. He was charged with "having intent and 
reason to believe that the [information] would be used to 
the advantage of Israel..." . 

In March, 1987, Pollard was sentenced to life 
imprisonment, with the sentencing judge adding a 
recommendation that Pollard never be paroled. 

This sentence was a travesty and perversion of 
justice that raises numerous unavoidable and troubling 
questions. 

What was it about the Pollard·affair that resulted in 
a sentence that was not only grossly deviant from sent­
ences meted out to other individuals who passed classi­
fied information to American allies, but even more harsh 
than the punishments imposed on Americans who spied 
for American adversaries, causing massive damage, 
including the compromising of American operatives in 
Communist countries and the death of Americans .. 

As Allen Dershowitz has argued over the past few 
months, "History provides, at least, some relevant 

provided by a French-American to F ranee or a Swedish­
American to Sweden, it is unlikely that the sentence 
would have been as severe." 

One must also ask what benefit Pollard received by 
pleading guilty to the charges against him, fully cooper­
ating with the government in its investigation and saving 
the government the expense of a trial. 

Not since the Rosenbergs passed to the Soviet 
Union, during the Korean War and the height of the 
Cold War, classified information about America's 
atomic weapons program, has anyone been executed in 
this country for espionage activities. 

The execution of the Rosenbergs, of course, 
remains highly controversial even today and none of the 
Americans who spied for the Russians since have 
received death sentences. It is therefore safe to assume 
that a death sentence was not a real option in the Pollard 
case. 

Thus, in the world of real possibilities, what could 
have been a worse result than a !if e sentence with a 
recommendation against parole? 

The motion submitted by Pollard's counsel persua­
sively argues· that one reason Pollard did not receive any 
benefit from the plea agreement was because the 
government violated the plea agreement in· three ways. 

The government promised that it would not ask for 
a life sentence but rather would limit its recommendation 
to asking for a "substantial" sentence. 

Notwithstanding this promise, Secretary of 
Defense Caspar Weinberger submitted two declarations 
to the sentencing court (the first being classified and 
detailing the nature and extent of the purported harm 
Pollard may have caused to national security) that could 
plainly be interpreted as advocating a life sentencr. 

(Continued on page 45) 



Pollard 
(Continued from page 4) 

Weinberger, for example, wrote in his declaration 
to the court the day before sentencing, "It is difficult for 
me, even in the so-called 'year of the spy' to conceive of 
greater harm to national security than that caused by the 
defendant. .. " 

The "year of the spy" referred to by Weinberger 
included the conviction of John Walker who sold secrets 
to the Soviet Union for 17 years and received a life 
sentence. 

As Pollard's motion argues, in stating to the court 
his oi;,inion that Pollard caused greater harm to national 
security than the likes of a John Walker, Weinberger 
was sending a very clear message to the sentencing 
judge. If Walker got life and Pollard caused as much or 
greater damage to national security, Pollard too should 
receive a life sentence. 

The government was clearly and improperly using 
the Weinberger memoranda to circumvent perhaps the 
most important promise of the plea agreement. The 
Weinberger memoranda, in fact, probably had more 
persuasive value than had the same arguments been 
made by the prosecuting attorney. 

The Pollard motion gives examples of a number of 
inflammatory inaccuracies in Weinberger' s memoranda 
and Pollard's counsel contends.in the motion that he has 
information that the classified memorandum contained 
false or exaggerated claims about the damage done by 
Pollard. 

Were this true, it would provide further grounds for 
withdrawing the guilty plea. 

The government however, has been dragging its 
feet in providing Pollard's counsel with access to the full 
text of Weinberger's classified declaration. 

The government also argued that it would limit its 
arguments before the court to the facts and circumstan­
ces of the case. It did not do so, but rather dedicated a 
significant portion of two memoranda submitted to the 
court at sentencing to a character assassination of Pol­
lard, characterizing him as a "recidivist," "unworthy of 

trust," being "contemptuous of the court's activities," 
and calling his conduct "traitorous." 

Caspar Weiberger's memoranda to the court and 
the government's oral statement at sentencing each con­
tained more of the same vituperatives. 

Thirdly, the government had promised to advise 
the court of Pollard's cooperation and the value of the 
information he provided to the government's investiga­
tion. 

The government, however, after telling the court of 
Pollard's cooperation and its importance, went on to cast 
aspersions on Pollard's motives for cooperating, stress­
ing his lack of remorse and elaborating on the fact that 
some of Pollard's alleged co-conspirators had fled the 
country. 

This effectively discounted the value to Pollard of 
the_ government's third promise. 

At sentencing, the government not only breached 
its side of the plea agreement, but argued that Pollard 
broke his undertaking by giving two interviews to Wolf 
Blitzer of The Jerusalem Post. 

But as Pollard's motion dearly establishes, "Not 
only did the Department of Justice know of the interview, 
it approved .and facilitated it." 

Furthermore, the Blitzer interviews were given four 
months before sentencing. If the government believed 
that Pollard had breached the plea agreement, its 
remedy at that point should have been to petition the 
court for a hearing to determine whether in fact the 
agreement had been breached. 

If it was found that Pollard had, in fact, breached 
the agreement, the remedy would have been to release 
the government from its promises under the plea agree­
ment, and allow it to fully prosecute Pollard. 

The government, however, did no such thing in 
November, but continued to obtain the benefits of the 
plea agreement, securing Pollard's continuing coopera- • 
tion and the forfeiture by Pollard of his constitutional 
right to a trial. • 

The government then sought ( quite successfully, it 
turns out) to deprive Pollard of his benefits of the plea 
agreement by belatedly asserting just at the time of the 

government's promised performance, the alleged breach 
by Pollard four months before. 

Finally, Pollard's motion points out that Federal 
rules of criminal procedure require that a judicial inquiry 
be made into the voluntariness of a guilty plea. 

Moreover, when pleas are linked or when the 
defendant's guilty plea is made in consideration of a third 
party receiving a lenient sentence, special care must be 
taken and a higher standard must be applied to assure 
the voluntariness of a guilty plea. 

Anyone familiar with the Pollard case is welt aware 
of the terrible conditions in the cell where Jonathan's 
wi;e, Anne, was imprisoned following her arrest, the 
physical threats she was subject to and the devastating 
physical deterioration she suffered while in prison. 

The government threatened to bring additional 
charges against her (she was charged with being an 
accessory after the fact to her husband's possession of 
national defense documents and with conspiracy to 
receive embezzled government property) if she did not 
plead guilty. 

Jonathan feared the effects of a prison sentence on 
his wife and felt the safest way to avoid a jail sentence for 
Anne would be for her to plead guilty to the initial 
charges brought against her. 

The government, however, linked the guilty pleas, 
forcing Jonathan to plead guilty to the charges brought 
against him in order to insure that his wife's life would not 
be endangered. 

Thus, even though Federal rules required that 
inquiry be made into the voluntariness of Pollard's plea 
and the facts surrounding Pollard's plea agreement 
screamed out for a serious exal"!lination of the possibility 
of coercion, the court relied solely on the statement of 
Pollard's counsel at the time of sentencing, and never 
asked Pollard himself whether he was entering his plea 
voh,mtarily or whether the plea was the product of force, 
threats, or promises. 

Pollard's petition to the court makes a powerful 
case, and it can only be hoped that justice will fin ally be 
done and that the court will grant Pollard's motion a:nd 
permit him to withdraw his guilty plea. 



VIA TELE!ACSIMIU: 

Mr. Phil Baum 
Amarican Jewish Congre11 
Stephen Wi•• C0ngre11 Kou1e 
lS E. 84th Stnat 
New ~erk, NY 1 10028 

Dear Phil: 

June 21, 1990 

The following i• a 1\JJllmary ot the major point• I pre­oentad at ye1terday 1 s meeting. 

Jonathan Pollard pleaded guilty to opying for Israel. 
Ho cooperated exten1ively in the Oofanaa Department'• damaga 
asaeasment and pro~ided the Juatice Department with valuable 
information about hi• co-conapirators. In e~change for 
waiving hia right to a trial -- a long and exponaive trial 
that would have required the Government t0 discloae poten­
tially damaging information -- and in con~ideration of hio 
valua~lo cooperation, the Gcvorrunent agreod to ask for a 
sentence ot l••• than lite 1mpriaorunent. 

In liqht of the unl:)roken hiatory of lenient aentencea 
for datendanta vno have pleaded guilty to spying tor Amer­
ican allie■, Pollard had every reaaon to oxpact that his 

l 



sentences would fall within the range ot prior sentences in 
cases involving alliea. 1 

Thia was especially a0, einco Israel 1a more than a 
mere passive ally; it aharoa the ~oat senaitive National 
security information with the United States on an ongoing 
and mutual basis, and was lawfully entitled under various 
exchange agreements to mueh of the intormation provided to 
it by Pollard. 

Prior to sentencing, however, Secretary ot Defense, 
Casper Weinborger submitted a sworn deolaration spocifically 
addressed to 11 dafendant'• self-serving oontention1 that hia 
espionage aotivitiea were intended only to aid Iarael ... " 
In hi• declaration, Wainl:>argar made th• following aaaer­
tione: 

A) "It ia difficult for me, even in the 
ao-called •year of the epy, 1 to ooncoive of a 
greater hann to national security than that 
cauaed by the defendant ... " 
B) H• then demanded a sentence that 
ratlact• "th• perfidy o't ·tha individual'• ac­
tiona, the maqnitude ot the treason com­
mitted, and the need• of nati0nal aocurity." 
[emphaai■ added] 

··-
lNo peraon who pleaded quilty to spying tor a truatod ally during poaoetime had aver, to our knowledge, reciavod a sentence in excea■ ot tan years. Typically the ■entences are less than five yeara. 



'C) HI said that Pollard 1 a "loyalty to Is-
rael transcenda his loyalty to the United 
States," pointing to the fact that Pollard 
h0pes to emigrato to Israel. 
0) WoinbcrgQr then predicted that Pollard 
"will continue" to diiiclose t:nited State's 
secrets to Israel and demanded 11 a period ot I 

incarceration commensurate with the enduring 
quality ot the national detensa intormation 
he can yot i:npart. 11 

The statement• olearly ccmunicatad Weincarqar•a view that Pollard should be aentanced to lit• 1mpriaonl!lent, 
notwithstanding th• government's promi■e to aak for a loas severe 1entence. tit• is the only eentance that would in­dead be commensurate with the _greatcet possible harm to na­tional aacurity (it Pollard'& crimam were truly in that category) and the only centenoo that could aa1ura that Pol­lard .would never be lat out while he could 11 yat impart" valuable intcrmation, 

Th••• ■tatuenta alac strongly suggested that apying tor Iarael vaa the equivalent -- in tarma ct damage to the United Stat•• -- of apyinq fer the soviet Union and other "enemies" ot th• United s~at•• during tho cold war. It 1• clearly untru• that no other spy caao had ceuaod "qreatar harm" than th• Pollard ca■e, ainea other recent ca■•• in-
3 



volving long term apy .inie tc. cur enemies had caused mas­
sive damage -- including the doath of Americana. Indeed, 
Weinberger's explicit characterization ot Pollard's crime 
as "treaaon" plainly suggeats that it waa carried out on 
~~alf ot an enem~, sine• our con;titution declares that 
"treason againat th• United States shall oonaiat ~ in 
levying war again■t them, or in adhering to their enemi••· 
giving the aid and oomtort," (emphasia added) 

In it• sentencing memorandum, the Government auggestad 
that a modorate ecntenoe impoood on a defendant who spied 0.-,,,. ~ ~ 14/ forAiaraal might well "invite aimilar unlawful conduct ~Y 
others." In aw=aequant public 1tatementa the United Stat•• 
Attorney stated that Americana who •PY for Iaraal must 
receive even harsher aantancaa than tho1a who •PY for other 
countries aince many Americana strongly support Iarael, 
whereas few Americana aupport other foreign oountri••• 
T~eoe comment• have D&•n widely porceiVQd aa thinly veiled 
referencaa to th• old canard of "dual loyalty," They sug­
goat · that American Jaw• need qreatar deterrence ag~inat 
apying for Israel than do other Americana in relation to 
other countri••• 

Th••• unuaual elamanta in thie oaao, eepecially when 
evaluated apin■t th• background ot the unpracedanted lit• . . . ••ntance in thia ca■• cf ·•pying for a tru1ted ally, rai•• 
important questions ct concern to tho Jewish community. 
Foremost among tham ia tha unsettling question whether the 
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sentence in thia caaa would havs bean as harshly disparate 
for other comparable detendanta it Pollard had not bean 
Jewi~h and had the nation ho opied for not bcon Ioreol? 
This is a complex and dif!icult question to anawer. It 
certainly cannot oe answorcd ~y inappropriately advertising 
the Jewish backgrounds cf sevaral of the proseoutors, aa 
the Governmant ha1 dona hara (and as it did in the Rosen• 
berg case.) History provides, at lea1t, some relevant pa­
rametero which allow one to conclud~, with raaaonable con­
fidsnoa, that it camparablc information had been provided 
by a French-American to France or a Swedieh•Amarioan to 
Sweden, it is unlikely that the eantanca would have been as 
severe. 

At the very least, the•• facto ghitt tho burden ot 
persuasion to the government to juotity why thera has been 
•o graat a deviation in this oa1e fro~ the prior history ot 
sentences impoaod on defendant~ who have pleadad guilty to 
~pying for allies. Tha tacta olao ~al:!and that tne gcvern­
m&nt juatify the unprecedented eontanco impoocd en Anne 
Pollard and th• d•■iqnation of Jonathan Pollard to a auper­
maximum ■ecurity pri■on de■iqnad primarily tor violont 
recidivi■t. 

The Pollard oaaa raises serious questions ot concern 
to the Jewi1h Community. Thus far, few satisfactory an■-
wera have been provided. Part of tho raaaon is that tha 
major Jawiah organization■ have not raised theme questions. 

! 



Indeed, efforts by grass-root Jaws to engage in a dialogue 
with gcvarrunant official, a~out the Pollard case have been 
hindere4 because suoh offi=ial• hava notQd tho apparent 
lack of concern by the major Jewish organizations. This 
plays right into tha handa of those Govornmont ofticials 
who tried to keep ma out of the case because I am active in 
the Jewish community, and who told Pollard that the Jewish 
organizations did not care about him. 

For allot t.he above reasonm, the American Jewish Con­
gress should support the demand tor full and open hearings 
in appropriate governmental forume ot the eerious questions 
raised about tho Pollard case. 

Alan Dershowitz 

6 
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By JEFFREY S. BENKOE 
POtl.WAIU> STAl'l' 

NEW YORK - Confessed spy 
Jonathan Pollard filed for divorce 
from his wife Anne Henderson Pol• 
lard after their estrangement de• 
teriorated into a bitter dispute 

• over control of strategy to win his 
freedom. according to relatives, 
friends and lawyers. 

Mr. Pollard released a statement 
through his rabbi, Avraham Weiss, 
last weekend, seeking to deflect 
reports that his relatives and 
lawyers had influenced his deci• 
sion. 

Mr. Pollard purportedly filed· for 
divorce after his estranged wife 
herself threatened divorce on 
three occasions unless she and her 
father were allowed "to take 
charge of the case," Morris Pol­
lard, Jonathan's father, charged. 
Bernard Henderson, Anne 
Pollard's father, vehemently de­
nied the assertion. 

The divorce decision comes as a 
grass-roots effort is mounting to 
enlist support for Mr. Pollard in 
the organized American-Jewish 
community. There has been con­
siderable debate over the life sent­
ence Jiven to the former U.S. Navy 
intell1E;ence analyst, who pleaded 
guilty in 198S to spying for Israel, 

,Mr. Pollard ' s strategy to 
"maintain a low profile" while the 
judge considers the motion may 
backfire, according to a family 
frienci. MS, F-oiiaro was ·serveci 
with divorce papers while a pa­
tient in Mt. Sinai Medical Center 
in Ne~ York, where she is being 
treated for a serious stomach ail• 

ment. She was "shocked," her 
lnwyer1 Mark Baker, said. "She had 
no _idca it was coming," 

Love And Respect 

Mr. Pollard was concerned over 
interviews his wife would give in 
Israel, where she is scheduled to go 
later this month for more treat­
ment. "Jay was afraid (the inter• 
views) wouiQ Ctur, his \,;ha.i'1Cf;.) for~ 
lessened term," Morris Pollard 
said. Neither Jonathan nor Anne 
Pollard were available for inter• 
views. 

Mr. Pollard's lawyer, Alan Der­
showitz, filed a motion on March 
12 before U.S. District Judge Au­
brey Robinson to have his guilty 
plea withdrnwn, 

There are different versions on 
her intentions in Israel. Morris 
/ Plc<l$C tum to Page 12 
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Spy Pollard Sues Wife for Divorce 
Continued jrom Page l 
Pollard's version goes this way: 
"When Jonathan learned that 
Anne was going to Israel, without 
consulting with him as to what her 
agenda was, he decided that w3S 
enou~h. His statement was, 'If 
theres no rospect, there's no love, 
and if there's no love, there's no 
·marriage.' That was the end of it.'' 

Her lawyer, Mr. Baker, offered 
this account; Mr. Pollard sought a 
written agreement from his wife 
that "whatever she said in Israel · 
ha~ to be cleared first.' ' Mr. Hen.' 
derson said, "No one can decide 
what Anne is fOing to do ... no one 
else decides.' 

• Ms. Pollard, who is suffering 
from pancreatitis or another form 
of stomach dysfunctioning, has 
been in Mt. Sinai for four weeks as 
doctors try to dia~nose her condi, 
tion, Mr. Baker said. She has been 
experiencing "excruciating abdo-

minal pain," he added. She is sche­
duled to fly to Isrnel on July 31 for 
tests at one of the Madassah hospit• 
als. AnJ~raeli .insurance company 
has agreed to cover, her' medical 
expenses;, up tc~ H54 000. The 
amount of the'Mt.. Si'nai bills was 
not known. 

The U.S. Parole Commission, 
which released her on probation 
on March 31 after serving two and 
a half years in federal prison, gave 
her permission to stay in Israel for 
ten weeks. 

The couple has been estranged 
since she was released: she has not 
visited him in prison. Ms. Pollard 
claims that his family w.tnted a 
lawyer present for the visit. His 
side claims she insisted on the 
Silme condition. I 

The domestic:: dtuation has de, 
teriorated evei1 further into 
charges and countercharges. Mor­
ris Pollard asserted that Ms. Pol· 
lard and her father have pressured 
Jonathan to follow their course. • 
''When Anne .got out of prison in 
March, she called Jay (Mr, 
Pollard's middle r._ame) on three or 
four occasions at1d told him she 
and her father wanted to take 
charge of this case and wanted to 
be responsible for the whole 
thin,," Morris Pollard said. "If he 
didn t comply, she said she would 
divorce him. Her father sent a let• 
ter which said if Jay did not comp, 
ly, there would be dire 

• consequences," H.e declined tote· 
lease the letter. 

Mr. Henderson an~rily denied 
the letter's existeace. 'There is no 
such letter," he said. "It is an out, 
rageous and absolute, total lie.'' 

Difficult Reflection 
Morris Pollard said he told his 

daughter-in-law "her performance 
on some of the talk shows was not 
good and caused her to lose 
credibility." He asserted that at 
sentencing time five years ago, 
Judge Robinson was "very in­
censed, There was a lot of media 
covera1e, and it nntngonized the 
judge.' 

Ms. Pollard feels her husband "is 
not thinking soundly," according 
to Mr. Baker. "He's reflecting the 
thinking around him." 

That thinking ap~arently in­
cludes the view that 'his best op­
tion is now to maintain as low a 
profile as possible," said the family 
friend. Ms. Pollard, the friend 
added, is considered "far more 
public-minded than Jonathan .. .All 
he wants to be right now is quiet." 

In the statement released by 
Rabbi Weiss, spiritual leader of 
Hebrew Institute of Riverdale in 
the Bronx, Mr. Pollard said: "The 
decision to seek a divorce is mine 
and mine alone. lt was reached llf. 
ter long and agonizing reflection. I 
was not influenced by any party, 
be it my parents, my sister, or my 
lawyers ... My decision was based 
on lonJ, meticulous and difficult 
reflection, I have concluded that 
unfortunately our agendas and 
directions no longer converge," 

He added: "There are many 
other issues of a private nature 
which I pray that reople will 
accept on face value. 

Mr. Pollard remains in solitary 
confinement all but two hours of 
the day. His basement cell at the 
federal penitentiary in Marion, Ill. 
has teached 110 degrees over the 
last few weeks, according to f amity 
members. "All the rumors and in• 
nuendoes about hlm being unba• 1 

lanc:ed are absolutely false," said 
Robbi Weiu, who visited him 
scv,;ral weeks a~o.'' . 

k-.eanwhile, m recent weeks 
there has been increased formnl 
recognition among several nation• 
al American-Jewish groups. The 

· Amcrlcon Jewish Congress hns re• 
commended n reexnmin:ition of 
the sentence. On July 4 n regional 
convention of B'nai B'rith Interna, 
tiorinl in California passed a re• 
solution declaring unequi'Y'O(;ally 
tha i. Mr. Pollnrd's treatment "was 
unauly harsh and excessive in that 
his sentence was unprecedented 
nnC:: far more severe than those his• 
toricnlly rnetcd out to most per• 
sons convicted of espionage." The 

• locnl group voted to present a re• 
solution to the International con, 
ver. tion next month. And the Inter• 
nntionat Associntion of Jewish 
Lnuyors and Jurists has passed a 
res,,lutlon urging that the case be 
,reopened. 



.:. 

TalK About Bmn-g-Frepared! 

Something is radically wrong at the Pen­
tagon! We were warned about Iraq's use of poi­

son gas on Iran and their chemical warfare 

potential early last year, yet, preparations for 

such an attack in this country have been nil. 
We have been told that the equipment 

American military forces will have to use 

against a chemical attack are heavy an·d so con­

fining our troops would not be able to operate 
effectively. • 

For the past two years, the Defense Depart­

ment has asked for a tremendous increase - for 

what? They claimed more planes ~nd sophisti­

cated stealth bombers were needed. But they, of 

all people should know that no war has ever 

been won with airpower alone. It is still the 

ground forces that assert control over a given 

area. 
The irony of all this is that years ago Jona­

than Pollard, who was convicted of spying for 

Israel, was the one who first blew the whistle 

and alerted the entire world that Arab nations 

were arming themselves with chemical wea­
pons. So there is no question about Pentagon of­

ficials having sufficient warning. It was at that 

time, they should have sought allocations and 

begun preparations for protective gear for sold­

iers fighting in desert climates. So what did the 

army purchase? Protective gear for . cold 

weather areas! 
Something is radically wrong with Presi­

dent Bush's advisors. 
If there is a chemical attack on American 

soldiers, the President has promised retalia­

tion. Will he really use atomic weapons? We 

doubt it very much! Thousands of innocent peo­

ple will become victims and the entire world 

will be united against this country for using 

(Continued on ~age 24) 
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such a weapon just as the world came down on 

President Truman when an atomic bomb was 

used against Japan. True, th~t ~om~. took_th?~­
sands of lives and is still claiming hves to _tms 

very day, but it did save thousands of American 

G.l.'s who might have died because of the Japa­

nese. 
We pray the President is not forced to use 

the "doomsday weapon" - just a~ we ~ray Ira~ 

and the other Arab nations con tam their chemi-

cal weapon warfare. . 
Once the genie is out of the bottle, it'll be 

hard to recap it. 
' ·. . . 



-.V 1lu. 1ew,-s._ kl~ JS,dtiin i/l/tO 
Rabbis of northern London 
ask Thatcher to help Pollard 

LONDON - Rabbis rep­
resenting three branches of 
Judaism in Britain are asking 
Prime Minister Margaret 
Thatcher to intervene with 
United States president 
George Bush on behalf of 
convicted spy Jonathan 
Pollard. 

The rabbis, all residents of 
Finchley, northern London, 
planned to hand the prime 
minister a letter asking that 
she convey to Bush the "deep 
concern" felt by "Jewish peo­
ple everywhere" about the life 
sentence imposed on Pollard 
in 1985 and the way he has 
been treated ever since. 

Pollard has been impri­
soned in solitary confinement 
and strictly limited in who 
may visit him and in corres­
ponding with people outside 
the prison. 

Four of the eight signato­
ries are Orthodox rabbis, 
three are Reform and one is 
from the Progressive branch. 

They charge that Pollard, a 
former civilian intelligence 
analyst employed by the U,S. 
Navy, was the victim of harsh 
and vindictive treatment when 
he was sentenced to life impri­
sonment for spying for Israel. 

your constituents about the 
plight of Jonathan Pollard." 

The rabbis acknowledge 
that Pollard was convicted for 
passing classified information 
to Israel, but "at no time was it 
alleged, or was he convicted, 
of passing United States' 
secrets," they wrote. 

They claim that "all the 
information was specifically 
about the Arab front line 
states" and was intended to 
help Israel defend itself 
against chemical weapons 
such as are manufactured by 
Syria and Iraq. 

The rabbis note that after 
more than five years in prison, 
Pollard is still_ in solitary con­
finement and, they say, suffers 
"mistreatment more befitting 
the KGB Gulags of pre­
Gorbachev Russia." 

London Je...,·ish Chronicle/ JT.1 

Their letter states, "We 
appreciate that the United 
Kingdom government cannot 
intervene in the United States' 
internal affairs, but human 
rights are an international 
matter," and· "we therefore , 
respectfully ask you" to raise 
with the U.S. administration 
'the concern which is felt by ~ 
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WAS HE POISONED AGAINST ME? 

from Yediot Achronot 
by Zadok Yeheskely 

July 17, 1990 

Anne Pollard lies like a baby in Mount Sinai Hospital, 
still thin after many months outside jail, her face pale 
and lifeless. A red balloon and some large, joyful 
greeting cards mock her . "What's left for me now?" She 
quietly says. "You ask whether I cried? Sure I did. 
What would anybody else do if she received something like 
that from a man with whom she had lived for five years, 
for whom she had spent 40 months in jail? I am still 
shocked." 

Indeed, this scene invites only ~sympathy for the 30 
year old woman, who blindly followed her husband, was 
sentenced to jail in dreadful conditions, went to jail, is 
in poor physical condition, fought like a lion for his 
liberation, -- and finally faced a divorice claim. 

But as you will find out, the story is much more 
complex. It includes mutual accusations and criticism 
relating to Anne Pollard's personality, her unstable 
behavior, her possible madness. It includes long months 
of struggles, sometimes rude and loud, between the two 
camps around Anne and Jonathan Pollard. 

It is not a beautiful story. We prefer the former 
one: the story of their brave love, still loving after so 
many years in prison. We prefer the young broken wife 
stating she won't rest until her husband is free and they 
can make Aliyah and live in the country for which Jonathan 
dared to do everything. 

But something went wrong. Both parties tried to hide 
it, hoping it would be satisfactory, until Jonathan made a 
final step, applying for divorce. Still he tries to be 
discrete and to not expose the background, but this seems 
to be in vain. 

Last Passover, Jonathan spent the "seder" with his 
family, having a 30 minute telephone call to his sister's 
home. Anne was alone that time, in her father's tiny 
apartment. Jonathan says that he tried to talk to Anne, 
but he couldn't. Then, in April, their relationship was 
worse. But even before Anne left jail, something went 



wrong, especially betw€en Anne's father, Bernard 
Henderson, on one , hand, and Jonathan's sister, parents 
and Amnon Dror, the chairman of the committee for Jonathan 
in Israel, on the other hand. Bernard accused them of not 
financing his work and his lawyers. In fact, say the 
Pollards, Bernard wanted to control the public campaign 
and take it from Amnon Dror. 

"His declarations of not being financed are not 
true," says Dror, and this is a moderate espression. 
Among the complaints against Anne's father are: wasting 
money, over drinking, and inciting Anne against the 
Pollards. 

Henderson loses his patience upon hearing it: "I 
never told my daughter what to do. When she said she 
loved Jonathan, I went with her. I love her and l do what 
she asks, but the Pollards and Amnon Dror have done the 
last two months whatever they could to hurt her~• 

Anne and her father are sometimes violent. During one 
of the meetings, Bernard tried to hit Amnon Dror. 
Pollard's family suspect that Anne's fights in jail were 
derived from her impatience and her temper. "It's true 
that I am aggressive," says Anne, "I am not as shy as 
Jonathan. I am like the Israelis. I immediately say what 
I think, but Jonathan liked it." The Pollards could live 
with it when she was in jail, but afterwards the road to 
disputes was short. 

The first explosion was between Anne and Carol 
Pollard, Jonathan's sister. Caorl was the dominant figure 
in the struggle for the couple. She visited Anne many 
times in prison. Due to Anne's behavior, Carol suggested 
she should get mental treatment. Anne "exploded" upon 
hearing it, and stopped speaking to Carol, calling her a 
"witch", and once even a "C.I.A. agent." Bernard 
Henderson claims: "The Pollards tried to get rid of my 
daughter by getting a psychiatric report without my 
daughter's knowledge. They invited a psychiatrist to 
dinner with Anne, so she could see her and make the 
report." The Pollards deny this. 

Shortly afterwards Anne stopped talking to Morris 
Pollard, Jonathan's pleasant father. This time it was due 
to the same background that caused Jonathan's decision 
concerning the divorce. Soon after she left jail, Anne 
took control of the public campaign in favor of her 
husband. She was interviewed for "A Current Affair," and 
the Larry King show on CNN. Anne, as usual, attacked the 
administration. Jonathan and family, especially his 
lawyers, were raging, and tried to convince Anne to keep a 
"low profile" in order to enable diplomatic efforts to 
release Jonathan, and steps aimed at the vacating or 
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cancelling the verdict· against him. Anne refused. She 
also did not always tell the truth in the interviews. For 
example, she said that Weinberger's prosecution of 
Jonathan was derived from his being a Jew. Weinberger, it 
was found out, is not a Jew. "You are harmful," said 
Jonathan to his wife in one of their talks on ·the 
telephone, but she insisted on continuing. "Your way is 
not my way," he said, but she still insisted, "This is my 
way." 

When Morris Pollard asked her to "go off the 
television" she refused, and stopped talking to him. When 
he sent her flowers for her birthday, she threw them 
away. The family says that Anne threatened she would 
divorce Jonathan if they did not accept her management of 
the campaign. Anne denies this: "This is the last thing 
that I want." 

[A section with description of their background, when 
and where they met, their excellent relationship, etc.] 

Even when they were arrested, Jonathan and Anne were 
fully loyal to each other. "I sacrificed everything for 
him, these 40 months in jail. If I had cooperated, they 
would not have arrested me. The case against me is based 
on our relationship having been so close." 

Nobody denies this description, but Jonathan's family 
and friends claim that during the years they were apart, 
it went wrong, and this accelerated after she was freed. 

By then, five months ago, Jonathan began to consider 
the divorce. "He was depressed by her behavior, 
especially by her not visiting him," says Morris Pollard. 
"I think that if she had visited him, this divorce would 
not have occurred," says Carol Pollard. 

YA: Anne, could you really not find the time to see 
your husband? 

AP: There is nothing I wanted more than that. But 
after I finally got permission, the problems began, I 
was hospitalized three times. I could not have 
visited him. How can one claim that I neglected him? 
Every day I acted to make him free. 

The relatives disagree. Morris Pollard says she had 
airline tickets and reservations, but she refused to use 
them. For 4 months, they say, she didn't accept his 
calls. Jonathan was especially insulted when he tried 
twice to call her on her birthday, unsuccessfully. Anne: 
"His family, Amnon Dror, and the people in jail wanted to 
destroy our marriage. They saw that he doesn't call. The 
worst was that I tried to call and they laughed at me in 
j ai 1." 
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In March, a new lawyer's office began to deal with 
Pollard's matters. This office, hired to deal with the 
public campaign to release Jonathan, was increasingly 
busy with the divorce. Anne, her father, and their lawyer 
say they accelerated the divorce. The quarrel became 
uglier everyday, until Baker warned Morris Pollard on 
behalf of Anne that he "will have to act if the Pollards 
don't stop chasing Anne." He accused the family, 
especially Carol, of being obsessive by telling lies and 
half-truths about her mental state and her relations with 
her family. He was especially angry because of a 
conversation between Carol and Anne's probation officer, 
in which she tried to convince the prison authority to 
prevent Anne from going to Israel. Carol acknowledges the 
existence of the conversation but claims that it was 
initiated by the officer, and she did not say anything 
against Anne. 

Doubts were raised as to whether Anne is ill, as she 
claims. There were questions like how, after so many 
hospitalizations, do physicians not have one, common, 
diagnosis. "I think she is sick and needs treatment," 
says Morris Pollard, "but we don't know just what she is 
suffering from." 

Bernard Henderson claims tha the Pollards tried to 
convince the doctors in the hospital that Anne is not 
sick. "This is a scandal," he says. "My daughter was 
dying when she was hospitalized on June 30." 

But the greatest dispute concerned Anne's visit to 
Israel. Jonathan and family were afraid she would use it 
for an embarrassing campaign against the government of 
Israel. The demanded that she refrain from that. She 
refused. Baker claims that in order to force her to agree 
they had three conditions and if she disagreed her visit 
to Jonathan's prison on July 10 would not take place. 
Among the conditions: accepting Amnon Dror's 
instructions. Anne refused. Jonathan decided on July 5, 
the divorce was submitted, but by Jonathan's request, 
service would wait until Anne felt better. Almost two 
weeks afterwards, the papers were handed to Anne. Anne 
refuses to believe: "It isn't him," she repeatedly says, 
counting every detail in his short letter. "He never 
called me 'dear Anne.' He used to call me Annie. And he 
never signed 'Jonathan' but always 'J'. After five years, 
is that all he has to write as an explanation to the 
divorce?" 

Jonathan indeed is short, dry, and strict, almost like 
in his divorce claim. "It is obvious to both of us, that 
the differences between us are too great to be bridged. 
After a long time and thought, and in spite of the warm 
feelings, it seems that our marriage has come to its end." 
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"Is that what • we had," cries Anne, "warm feelings?" 

YA: Are you angry with him? 
AP: No, Maybe just a little, for letting others 
influence him, to poison him against me. But I cannot 
stop loving or understanding him. Others made him do 
that. This is his lawyers and family. Until 4 months 
ago everything was alright. It makes me want to see 
him .. I am dying to talk to him, to the Jonathan I 
knew and married. Not that from the letter. The man 
that I married admired me. Worshipped me. Begged me 
for years to get married. 
YA: Maybe you hurt him. Your way wasn't his. He 
didn't agree with you. 
AP: I want to hear it from him. What did I do? I 
said that the USA was not at war with Israel, and 
shouldn't withold the information that Jonathan was 
forced to deliver to Israel. He told me himself that 
he had thousands of letters in favor of my interviews. 
YA: So what are you go i ng to do? 
AP: I'll go to Israel for sure, and soon afterwards 
I'll visit him, my husband. To get an explanation. 
Anyhow, I will go on fighting for him. He does not 
deserve being in prison. I don't believe we will 
divorce. Don't believe that he wants that. I still 
dream the same dreams: I want to go with him to 
Israel, to raise our children together. From my point 
of view, nothing has change. 
YA: If he calls, what will you tell him? 
AP: That I love him, and what can I do for him. That 
if there are differences, they are bridgable. That I 
don't mean to stay out of his life just like that. 
Believe me, that if I see him, and he sees me, love 
will bloom and things will be alright. 

Nobody believes that story but Anne. Last week 
Jonathan's personal Rabbi Avi Weiss visited him. "It was 
very hot, 45 degrees and the prison was burning. He was 
very depressed," says Weiss, who stayed an extra-long time 
due to Jonathan's mood. Pollard explained his motives for 
the divorce. "He struggled for long months. It was a 
difficult decision, but it was his own." Weiss, whom Anne 
wouldn't see for months, went to see her in New York, to 
explain Jonathan's motives. She was not convinced. 

During the weekend his parents visited him. "The 
decision was not mine," Jonathan explained, "It was, in 
fact, Anne's." For the first time he talked about what he 
defined as threats and being taken advantage of by his 
wife and her father. "They threatened me," explained 
Jonathan, and said that he had received some letters and 
phone calls from them, including divorce threats and 
"painful projections", if he didn't agree to their demands. 
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One of Henderson's demands, says Pollard, was to give 
him full control of the campaign in favor of Jonathan. 
One of Anne's demands was that he stop all communication 
with his parents. Another -- selling his rights for a 
film about his life and capture. "They wanted to get rich 
by means of this movie," Pollard accused his wife and her 
father. "I demanded that the income from this film, will 
be used for charity. They rejected that." 

Jonathan says that the calls were so loud and 
and in some cases the authorities sent the prison 

extreme, 
chaplain 
Without to calm him down. "She lost any respect for me. 

respect there is no love, and there is no use in 
marriage." The Pollards heard his decision, they say, 
with deep sorrow. Carol: "I am very sorry for Anne. 
know she blames us, but she needs to blame herself." 

YA: Did you have anything to do concerning his 
decision? 
CP: Not at all. Nobody can force Jonathan to do 
anything. It was his own decision. We didn't have 
any part in it. 

Conciliation prospects, everybody agrees, are poor. 
The nice story has ended. What's left is the truly 
important: "My son out of jail -- that's what is now 
important," says Morris Pollard. 

To that, everyone agrees. 
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~ A number of years ago, l found myself in the Jerusalem office of a travel 
\ 

agent trying to book a flight home to the States. The office was located in one 

of Jerusalem's indoor shopping malls~-actually, it's the only indoor shopping 

mall--and while waiting for the agent to confirm the reservation, my eyes were 

drawn to the hustle and bustle of people going in and around the various stores. 

In truth, I wasn't that engrossed in what the other people in the mall were 

doing until I spotted what I thought was an unbelievable and terrible sight. It 

was a man beating a child. For a brief second, I thought the man was some 

-father just disciplining his son for some infraction or misbehavior. In Israel, 

~ _J. people are a lot less hung up about giving their kids a zetz or two in public. 

But, the beating didn't stop with one or two slaps. As a matter of fact) not 

only was the man hitting the child, who was only 7 or 8 years old, but he 

started kicking him as well. 

Well, I couldn't take it anymore, and I ran out of that office screaming at 

the top of my lungs in iny broken Hebrew: Stop! What are you doing? You're 

hurting the kid. You can't do this! 

Well, strangely enough, the man immediately stopped beihng the child. 

Even stranger was the fact that he had no response to my outburst. He didn't 

lash out at me, either physically or verbally. Maybe, it was because he knew 

his actions were endangering the kid. Then again, maybe, after listening to my 

broken Hebrew, he thought I'd never understand any explanation he might offer. 

Whatever the reason, 1 truly believed that this was the end of the matter. 

certainly figured that this was the case when one of the security men in the 

' buil_ding came running up to us. As far as I was concerned, let him take care of 

i 
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. 
thii'lgs--Jet him make sure that Hie man wouldn't change his mind and start 

beating the kid again or me for that matter. 

Yet, instead of addressing the parent, he turned to me and angrily asked, 

11 What business is it of yours? Who do you think you are anyway? What are you 

so sensitive about'?" 

I was floored. I didn1t expect to be thanked for my actions, but I 

certainly didn't expect to be castigated ei!her. -I also couldn't understand why 

no one came to my aid or offered support frorn the group of people that had 

gathered during the course of the whole scenario and now formed a rainbow arc 

around the four people involved. Surely, they knew of the injustice that had 

been and was now being c&rried out. 

I left the scene totally bewildered. l couldn't make any sense of anyone's 

reaction until l walked back into the travel office and the agent greeted me 

with, "l never knew you were such a Pinchas." 

Right then and there, I understood what had happened in the hall of the 

mall. I had been viewed as a zealot. I had been viewed as another Pinchas. 

How is this possible? 

You know the story of Pinchas--how confronted with the harlotry of B'nei 

Yisrael with Moabite women, when faced with the immorality and indecency of 

Zimri, prince of the tribe of Shimon, with Cozbi, a Midianite princess, Pinchas 

picks up a spear and kills them. 

For his actions, Pinchas is rewarded by God, according to this week's Torah 

reading, with not only the High Priesthood, but also BRIT SHALOM - "My Covenant 

of P_eace11--peace in the sense of peace of mind and body, so says the Midrash, 

from any thoughts or attempts at revenge on the part of Zimri's relatives. 
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Yet, the Torah Temima, the commentary, indicates that it was not just 

Zimri's relatives that Pinchas needed protection frorn. Rather, it was the other 

leaders and authorities of B'nei Yisrael. They looked askance at Pinchas' 

actions. They had not necessarily witnessed what had transpired, so they were 

not convinced that his actions were motivated by genuine zeal for G-d or by the 

injustice or immorality that he saw. The covenant of peace, therefore, was 

peace between himself and the other leaders to ~convince them of the genuiness of 

his actions and motivation, 

Certainly, the statements of the security guard, "What are you doing? What 

business is it of yours? Who do you think you are anyway?" can be seen as a 

reflection of disbelief m the genuiness of my actions. He had not witnessed 

what had taken place and probably thought I was just another mixed~up, 

misdirected American tourist. Why else would he ask: "What are you so 

sensitive about?" 

Well, the security guard may not have observed what had transpired, which 

is why he mistrusted my actions, yet certainly some of the people in the mall 

had witnessed what happened, were knowledgeable of the facts, were aware of the 

original injustice and knew the unfair treatment I was receiving at the hands of 

the local authority. Why didn't they speak out - why weren't they willing to 

extend to me a BRIT SHALOM - a covenant of peace? 

Why indeed? 

There is another situation where BRIT SHALOM is not being offered, neither 

by the authorities nor by the people. The situation is the case of Jonathan 

Pollard. I am sure I need not make you aware of the fact that Jonathan Jay 

Pollard was charged with espionage for the government of lsrael and passing on 
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classified information. As ,you probably also know, the information which 

Pollard passed on was data on Syrian and Iraqi chemical warfare capabilities, 

the location of Libyan radar installations, and warnings of planned PLO attacks 

on Israel. 

What you may or may not know, however, is that when Pollard approached the 

American authorities with why this information vital to the security of an ally 

was being withheld--he was told, "Stay out of this. This is none of your 

business. You Jews are always so sensitive when it comes to gas." 

What you may or may not know is that when Pollard decided he could no 

longer stand by and allow the injustice of such an attitude prevail, and after 

he was caught and convicted of the charges to which he himself plead guilty, he 

was sentenced to life imprisonment without possibility of parole--this despite 

the fact that he cooperated with government authorities, this despite the fact 

that he was promised leniency, this despite the fact that he was NOT charged 

with endangering U.S. operatives or endangering U.S. security. 

What you may ot may not know is that his wifet Anne, was cruelly denied 

adequate medical treatment during the period of her incarceration, a fact which 

has left her physically disabled--that for part of 4 1/2 years, Jonathan has 

spent in solitary confinement. Ten and one-half months of that time was spent 

in a mental institution, even though there was no medical justification. 

Something is veryt very wrong here, people. This doesn't sound like 

America. It sounds more like Russia. It doesn't sound like the CIA. It sounds 

more like the KGB. Whatever happened to due process under the law? Whatever 

happened to the prohibition of cruel and unusual punish!Tlent? Whatever happened 
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to the U.S. Constitution--t'he Covenant of Peace--under which all citizens of the 

Unites States are entitled to live? 

Just moments earlier, I introduced the facts regarding the Pollard case 

with the phrase "you may or may not know". I did so, because although the case 

has been in the media for the past 4 1/2 years, most of the information J just 
related was not known. It certainly was not know by me until 1 heard it two 

-weeks ago from Dr. Morris Pollard, Jonathan's father. Dr. Pollard has only 
recently taken to touring the Jewish communities of this country, like Atlantat 
to try tp drum up support for his son's cause, because he is convinced that 
Jonathan has been denied the due process that the Covenant of Peace supposedly 
guarantees all citizens of this country. 

For some strange reason, however, Dr. Pollard has not received the most 

enthusiastic reception from the Jewish communities he has visited. Instead, the 

reactions and responses to his presentation of his plea have run along the lines 
of "You do the crime, you do the time!" or 111t 1s not high on the agenda of the 

Jewish community''· 

Well, why isn't justice for Jonathan Pollard high on the agenda of the 

Jewish community? Certainly, one reason has to be the troublesome notion of 

dual loyalty--a notion and an issue that has plagued Jews everywhere from the 

time the ghetto walls came tumbling down and emancipation was granted to us. 

We're proud Arner icans, and we claim to be loyal citizens of the country where we 
reside. Pollard's spying for Israel has embarrassed us, because it raises the 

fact that one of our own was not so loyal. We're uncomfortable that others 
might think that all American Jews are like Jonathan Pollard. 
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Yet, is it possible that our. embarrassment and our uncomfortableness may be 

due to a different factor? The Midrash indicates that one of the reasons it was 

necessary that G-d grant Pinchas a BRIT SHALOM--a Covenant of Peace--was because 

the other Israelites, having witnessed the immorality that was taking· place, 

nonetheless stood by idly until Pinchas acted. At that point, they were not 

only embarrassed but also somewhat resentful of Pinchas, because he alone acted 

even though they knew they should have. 

Could lt possibly be, then, that members of the American Jewish community 

are not rushing to Pollard's defense because in some way they're resentful of 

his having acted on something they should have--on something we have always 

known but not wanted to admit or confront--that when lt cornes to American 

foreign policy towards Israel, it is not always just nor is it necessarily 

moral. 

The same Mldrash I alluded to earlier goes· on to state that G-d was not 

content to bestow upon Pinchas some abstract covenant of peace. lnstead, at the 

moment Pinchas killed Zimr i and Cozbi, the clouds which had hung over the 

Israelite camp disappeared and a rainbow appeared in the sky. 

Why a rainbow? Why the symbol which G-d set in the sky following the 

flood? Well, the rainbow, which is it's own BRIT SHALOM and BRIT OLAM, its own 

eternal covenant, was not meant just to be a reminder that G-d will never again 

de5troy the earth. Rather, our sages tell us, when mankind looks upon the 

rainbow, it ls supposed to remember that G-d was prompted to bring the flood 

because injustice and immorality were so rampant. 

As such, our existence on this earth is to try to not allow the injustices , 

and ·immorality from ever becoming so all encompassing again, by not only 
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refraining from committing ?njustice but by preventing injustice and combatting 

immorality as it affects all of G-d1s creatures. 

Last Thursday, arolmd 7-8 P .M. following the thunder storms that we so 

desperately needed to fill our reservoir and quench our parched lawns, there was 

a rainbow that appeared in the sky. I hope that most of you were able to catch 

it, because l cannot remember seeing a more beautiful rainbow. It was a 

complete arc, encompassing the entire sky, linking heaven and earth from one end 

to the other. As Maureen and I admired this phenomenon first from our car and 

later on when we stopped and got out to look, I couldn't help but think that we 

are all G-d's creatures under His heaven. I could not help but feel, therefore, 

the bond that unites all of us, that insists that we not permit injustice and 

immorality to be perpetrated on anyone. 

I left the travel agency finally, with iny tic}<et in hand but stlll very 

much confused at what had transpired. As I approached the arc-shaped exit 

about, which was painted a rainbow design, 1 spotted someone standing in the 

passage way who looked like one of those people who had been part of the crowd 

ear lier. I had no idea whether the person wanted to speak to me or not, but the 

last thing I wanted was another confrontation. As I tried to quickly exit the 

building, however, the person grabbed my arm and proceeded to rattle off in 

Hebrew something the gist of whkh was that he had been waiting there hoping to 

' catch me, wanting to tell me that he had seen what had taken place earlier. He 

saw the injustice that I acted against, and he saw the injustice that had been 

done to me. He apologized for not speaking up then, but he was too embarrassed. 

He hoped that his having waited for rne would set my mind at ease, would make me 

feel more at peace with myself and what I had done. 
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Well, there is someone els€ waiting to have his mind set at ease, someone . 
else who has been waiting for peace, a Covenant of Peace, to be extended for the 

injustices he tried to prevent and the injustice he has suffered. Isn't it time 

he stopped waiting? 

Marvin Richardson 
Sermon Delivered 21 Tammuz; 5750 (7/14/90). 

.. 
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BBi ALEXANDER M. SCHINDLER e UNION OF AMERICAN HEBREW CONGREGATIONS 
PRESIDENT 838 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK , N.Y. 10021 

August 27, 1990 
6 Elul 5750 

Mr. Morris Pollard 
The University of Notre Dame 
Lobund Laboratory 
Notre Dame, Ind. 46556 

Dear Mr. Pollard: 

(2121 249-0100 

Your letter of August 21st to Rabbi Schindler was 
received this morning. I write to advise that Rabbi 
Schindler is out of the city and not expected to return 
for two weeks. 

Be assured that your letter will be brought to his 
attention when he is back at his desk. 

With kindest greetings, I am 

Sincerely, 

Edith J. Miller 
Assistant to the President 

EJM/mb 



RABBI ALEXANDER ,v1. SCHI NDLER e UNION OF AMERICAN HEBREW CONGREGATIONS 
PRESIDENT 838 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK . N.Y. 10021 

Jonathan Pollard/09185-016 
P.O. Box 1000 
Marion, IL 62959 

Dear Jonathan: 

August 2, 1990 
11 Av 5750 

12121 249 0100 

I have your letter of June 21st. As my assistant told 
you, I was out of the country - in Israel in fact - and 
on returning, I had to go on several domestic trips. 
Indeed, tomorrow morning I am off to Texas for another 
weekend jaunt. 

Let me say at once that my reaction to Mr. Mandela is 
not unlike yours. To be sure, I left almost 
immediately after his arrival and only read what he had 
to say as it was printed in the Jerusalem Post and in 
the Herald Tribune; nor did I have a chance to see the 
Ted Koppel Show concerning which you wrote, although 
some of my associates were there and they gave me a 
full report. 

I, too, "wanted to give him the benefit of a doubt" and 
I, too, am bitterly dissappointed. 

Still in all, even with the benefit of hind sight, I 
would not have altered our approach precisely for those 
tactical reasons to which you alluded in your earlier 
letter. Concerning the future, your counsel is well 
taken. 

I know that life cannot be easy for you, all the more 
so because of your recent decisions concerning your 
marriage. I hope you will have the strength that you 
must have. Certainly your· mind has lost none of its 
mettle. 

With kindest greetings, I am 

Sincerely, 

Alexander M. Schindler 
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By Harry Schwartz 

T here is a vast distance between the 
U.S.A. and South Africa, Yet the 
media - in particular television -

have brought us right into your home. 
You have not only seen scenes of South 

Africa and its people, but your Congress 
has passed Jaws which affect our country 
and judgment has been passed by Ameri­
cans on laws and practices, behavior and 
occurrences pertaining to South Africa. 

South Africa has become a domestic 
political issue in the U.S.A., perhaps not 
a very important one to Americans but an 
issue nevertheless. 

The overwhelming majority of South 
Africa Jews has always been opposed to 
apartheid. This has been demonstrated 
by the words and actions of community 
leadership, the position of prominent 
individual Jt:.ws in the struggle against 
apartheid. and ,! ,o by electoral voting 
pall r.1, m ar dominantly Jewish. 

South Afri-:.t ,1.1 hanged over the 
)ear. ,ind dram..1 ' ·n the last fc, 
months The cou I ow firmly on the 
path of dismant nacceptabl y -
tern and creatin n di crimmatory 
society There i ng way to go. but 
at least an uneqL'l ocal start has been 
made. 

The new president. F. W. de Klerk, has. 
by a few firm and courageous decisions 
changed the course of South Africa. 
Apartheid , though not dead, is in the last 
throes before disappearing. 

The sincerity of the president, his 
integrity and his intensions are accepted 
even by his opponents, both black and 
white, but of course it takes two to tango. 

One is still awating reaction from the 
liberation movements not only to negoti­
ation itself but to the participation by 
others in the process, and even more the 
end result sought to be obtained. We are 
looking for a non-racial multiparty 
democracy with equality ot opportunity, 
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protection of basic human rights and a 
just economic society. 

We hear noises from people seeking 
nationalization of many private enter­
prises, of reviving socialist systems which 
have failed elsewhere and of one-party 
systems. We have not fought apartheid 
for most of our lives to find its successor 
to be contrary to what both we and west-

I have known 
Nelson Mandela for 
many ye rs ... 
and have visited 
him in pri on. 

em aemocratic stales find acceptable 
both m politics and 111 economics. 

T he road ahead is not easy and there 
will be times of elation and of depression, 
but at least we are full of hope. 

We have had the rod on our backs from 
many countries, including America -
sanctions, refusals of foreign loans, res­
triction on trade, disinvestment by U.S. 
companies. It has affected the growth 
cate of the economy and has caused 
increased unemployment and other 
adverse social consequences. 

We have had the stick. Is it not time, 
now that change is coming, and at a fast 
pace, for a little carrot? Improved eco­
nomic conditions will make political 
change easier. 

We ask for no handouts, only normal 
business and commercial relations. The 
country's credit record is good; it pays for 
what it buys and repays what it borrows, 
unlike many others. All we seek is normal­
ization to assist a process that will create 
a true democratic society and an accept­
able economic system. 

As Jews, we in South Africa are a small 
section of the total population, but we 
have cont ributed ore than our share to 
its culture, its well-being md to demo-

tic p litic 
We h vedr v n attack from ri'ght-wing 

organizati n I ecause of our opposition 
t apartheiu At m~etings the M gen 
David i p t upon, trampled and burnt, 
slogans atlack,ng Jews a e d1spl;1yed. 
3Wastikas an: flown and ~~ symbols dis­
played . But the community has stood 
firm. 

We have problems from Acab money 
used in propaganda campaigns in our 
country, and more recently the embrac­
ing of Arafat and Mandela and seeking to 
equate the situations in Israel and South 
Africa, and the statement that if South 
African Jews don't like it, it is just too 
bad. 

I have known Nelson Mandela for 
many years - at university, as one of the 
counsel in the Rivonia Trial, and have 
vis ited him in prison. I do not believe him 
to be anti-Semitic, but there was a link 
and identity of method between the PLO 

which one ho es wiH end 

South Africa. 
It would be a tragedy if a community 

which is attacked by right-wing whites 
for its · opposition to apartheid were-to 
find itself rejected or worse by those 
whose cause it has supported . But all of 
this will not deter one from opposing 
apartheid and working for a free and 
democratic society. This I and others do 
because we believe it to be right, not to 
please anyone or to seek favor. 

The Jewish community has other prob­
lems. It raises money for Israel, for 
Russian Jews, but it is short for its Jewish 
day schools, which are among the best in 
the world , and for its aged, which is 
increasing as a proportion of the total 
community. 

But we have our plusses. We are a well­
orga '1ized community. We have institu­
tions of which we can be proud, we put our 
money where our mouths are in respect to 
our love for Israel, and we are not afraid 

W • w1l, continue to build our institu 
tions we v. ill continue to maintain our 
love for Jt:ru alem, and we will work for a 
soc1 ty in South f in which we as 
Jev.!i> can e i,;t n with all other 
c; ctor of the com nity. We believe 
dem era~ good f Jews because it i 
good for a I other . 

Wf'_ do not ask for anything from our 
bretl-.ren in the Diaspora, including those 
in America, except that we remain 
brett ren, that we maintain our contacts, 
that we together uphold Jewish values 
and culture and that we try to understand 
each other 

I greet you from a distant land, but as 
part of Kial Yisrael. 

Yours sincerely, 

Harry Schwartz 

□ Harry SchwarJz is chairman of tie 
International Affairs Committee o t, .e 
South Africa Jewish Board of Dej :.ii es 
and a Democratic Party memb ·r of 
Parliament. 
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Mandela and the PLO 
The recent embrace of Arafat could divide anti-apartheid ranks 

By Stephen M. Davis 

, N OT Mandela too!" ex­
claimed a friend re­
cently after seeing the 

photographs - printed in news­
papers across America - of the re­
leased African National Congress 
(ANC) leader embracing Pales­
tine Liberation Organization 
(PLO) chief Yasser Arafat in 
Zambia. "I had been prepared to 
love Mandela, but that picture 
was like a stab in the heart. " 

Yet the Mandela-Arafat bear 
hug signifies much less than it ap­
pears. The ANC and PLO differ 
in such fundamental respects that 
it has been hard to view their re­
lationship over the years as any­
thing more than a reluctant kin­
ship. 

Unlike the PLO, the ANC 
never adopted terrorism. For 
nearly 50 years, the ANC coun­
tered race discrimination with 
nonviolent protest until the or­
ganization was banned in 1 960. 
When finally the ANC took up 
armed resistance, its military 
wing shunned attacks on civilians. 
The ANC high command has 
never ordered aircraft hijacked 
or women and children killed , 
and it has condemned terror 
strikes when they have oc­
curred. 

The two movements have also 
held contrasting vis.ions of their 
opponents. The PLO charter ad­
vocates the destruction of Israel 
and the expulsion of Jews. The 
ANC, on the other hand, has wel­
comed South African whites into 
its ranks and reassured them that 
they would be safe under an ANC 
government. Nelson Mandela 
himself spoke against both "black 
domination" and "white domina­
tion" first at his 1 964 trial, and 
again at his freedom rally in Cape 
Town in February. 

Worried about protecting its 
moral position, the AN C has 
taken pains to keep the PLO at 
arms length, and has done little 
more than pay lip service to the 
Palestinian cause. In any case, 
ANC leaders have spent sparse 
time on the problems of the Mid­
dle East, a region tl1ey view as pe­
ripheral to the anti-apartheid 
struggle. 

Then why didn't Mandela 
dodge Arafat? Why did he hug 
the PLO leader, "wish him success 
in his struggle" and then say that 
"if the truth alienates the pow­
erful Jewish community in South 
Africa, that's too bad"? When 
Mandela visits the United States 
later this year, he will doubtless 
face scores of questions on the 
PLO and Israel. Is the ANC 
heading into a painful conflict 
with Jews - one that could divide 

the anti-apartheid movement as 
well as aggravate black Jewish 
tensions in the US - or can the 
anxieties aroused by the Man­
dela-Arafat embrace be over­
come? 

To find answers, one must first 
dredge some facts from the 
murky ties between South Africa 
and the Middle East. 

American Jews have been a 
key element in the anti-apartheid 
coalition. Sou th African Jews, too, 
have a distinguished history of 
supporting antigovernment par­
ties; many of the white South Afri­
cans most active in the ANC itself 
are Jewish. 

But Israel long ago chose a dif­
ferent course. Targeted by an ex­
tensive Arab economic boycott 
and desperate for trade partners 
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in a hostile world, Jerusalem 
joined with Pretoria in secret mili­
tary cooperation agreements, in 
violation of a United Nations 
arms embargo. Some experts be­
lieve that Israel even helped 
South Africa develop and test an 
atomic bomb. 

Israel is by no means the only, 
nor even the most important, 
country helping to sustain Pre­
toria. Arab oil, European capital, 
and Japanese trade have all 
played key roles. Indeed, many 
other countries have much 
greater volumes of commerce 
with South Africa than does Is­
rael. 

But by supplying weapons and 
military advisers, Israel gave itself 
a uniquely high profile reputa­
tion as an ally of Pretoria and, by 
extension, an enemy of the anti­
apartheid resistance. 

Now, as white rule crumbles, 
the costs of Israeli policy are com­
ing due. Black resentment is one 
reason behind Nelson Mandela's 
recent embrace of Yasser Arafat 
in Zambia. 

A second reason is that the 
ANC and PLO underwent similar 
experiences as exiled liberation 
movements. For many years the 
two organizations relied upon the 

same patrons - the Soviet Union 
and its allies - for arms, training, 
and political support. The ANC 
and PLO often crossed paths in 
the same diplomatic wilderness. 

Yet the ANC has had almost 1 

nothing to do with the PLO. Iron­
ically, the Mandela-Arafat em­
brace has knotted the ANC to the 
Palestinian-Israeli conflict to a de­
gree it has always sought to avoid. 
Unless some urgent untangling 
measures are taken, a nasty rup­
ture looms between South Africa's 
anti-apartheid movement and 
some of its strongest supporters 
in the West. 

Now is the time for dialogus;. 
The ANC leadership may not yet 
appreciate why and how deeply 
the Arafat encounter affected the 
Jewish community. 

HERE AND ON PAGE I , NEAL J. MENSCHEL - STAFF 

Many Jews, on the other hand, 
seem to discount how resentful 
South African blacks feel about Is­
rael's provision of military assist­
ance to Pretoria. Delegations 
should be meeting to open com­
munication and avoid a split that 
could only benefit supporters of 
apartheid. 

Now is also a time for change 
in Israel's policy toward South Af­
rica.Jerusalem should be making 
overtures to the ANC, which is 
about to negotiate a new constitu­
tion with Pretoria. Similarly, it is 
time for the ANC to exchange its 
heretofore unquestioned - if su­
perficial - endorsement of the 
PLO for a more nuanced policy 
toward the Middle East. 

Talks now, before positions 
harden, can avert potentially seri­
ous disunity within the West's 
anti-apartheid coalition. Nelson 
Mandela and bewish leaders must 
make ume to egm them. 

■ Stephen M. Davis, author of . 
"Apartheid's Rebels: Inside South ' 
Africa's Hidden War;" is a senior 
analyst at the Investor Responsibility 
Research Center in Washington. He 
recently moderated '54.merican Jews 
and the ANG," a debate aired on C­
Span. 



July 3, 1990 
10 Tammuz 5750 

Jonathan Pollard/09185-016 
P.O. Box 1000 
Marion, IL 62959 

Dear Mr. Pollard: 

Just an note to acknowledge receipt of your letter of June 
21 to Rabbi Schindler. He is out of the country and not 
expected to return to his desk for another two weeks. Be 
assured your letter and the materials shared will be brought 
to his attention on his return. 

With kindest greetings, I am 

Sincerely, 

Edith J. Miller 
Assistant to the President 
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From page 2· us: the release of Nelson Theological Seminary m New powers. Had Mandela expressed unspea~able sufferings out of 

strife." Weeks ago, Pamyat 
announced a kind of national 
pogrom day for May 5. It took 
six weeks until the authorities 
reacted, saying that "rumors of 
Jewish pogroms m the mass 
media have no grounds 
whatsoever." 

(The situation reminds me ofa 
joke from Tsarist days: A Jew 
comes home, all excited, and 
tells his wife to start packing. 
"Why?" she demands. "There are 
posters on the walls . Fifty rubles 
for wholJlever shoots a bear." 
"What has this to do with us?" 
asks the wife. "Well," answers 
the man, "once they have shot 
us, how will we be able to prove 
we are not bears?") 

I notice that even the generous 
space my editor allows me is 
almost used up, so I have to leave 
Eastern Europe - though l have 
only scratched the surface - to 
comment on another glorious 

Mandela and all the hopes it has York who had come to honor dissatisfaction about this which Israel was born . The shirt 

engendered. him for receiving the Nobel relationship it might have been 1s closer than the jacket. The 
Many Jews in South Africa Peace Prize. The speech was understandable. But he used a other's pain is never as sharp as 

are in the forefront of the whites downplayed by his embarrassed term which in the "Fhird World is one's own. The Jews had their 

who fight apartheid. Several hosts and passed largely treif: colonialism. Colonialism Holocaust? So what? In South 

cousins of my wife's are among unnoticed. I published my article was the demon of which the Africa they share the privileges 

them. One had to have a very in • ew York's Jewish Week. nations of Africa and Asia of the whites! 
callous soul not to be moved by Later events, (the latest during managed to rid themselves and A few da s after his Lusaka 

the sight of the old man , who was Tutu's visit in Israel, in which, the implication is that if there statement. Mande a was as e 

robbed of one-third of his life , i.a., he refused to meet with still are vestiges of it, good how he thought South Afnca's 

coming out of jail. One relative Ethiopian Jews) have corrobo- riddance! Whatever business the Jews might feel about 11. He 
wrote us recently,jokingly, "No, rated my evaluation. Tutu is not U.S., Great Britain, France. etc. answered that truth hurts. and if 

I don't claim that I alone did it." only a soneh-lsrael, an enemy of has been doing with Pretoria will South Africa's Jews felt hurt. 

But he sounded exuberant. Israel. but a visceral and be forgotten. But "colonialism" "it's just too bad ." 
I wonder how he - and all the theological anti-Semite. This is the mark of Cam and this I have no solution to offer. I 

other Jewish anti-apartheid somewhat inocculated me mark will slick. Seen from this just wanted to make the point 
activists - must have felt when against illusions about what a angle. Man ea s w1s expresse that there may be a jinx in being 

they saw last week Mandela black-ruled South Africa would to Arafat to succeecl'' is Jewish. There remains one 

embrace Yasir Arafat in Lusaka. bode for Israel. ominous. Io succeed means to question mark: how intensely 
.Or when they heard him say; in a I grant that Mr. Mandela has erase that "unique colonialism." should we pay for a speedy 

voice tinged with hatred, "You no particular reasons to be a to erase Israe l. assertion of black majority rule 

are fighting a unique form of chovev-tsiyon, a lover of Zion. Jails are not the best in South Africa. so that the 

co Ion i"a Ii s m. I wish you Israel was and is on good terms universities . Hitler wrote Mein emerging black colossus. be able 
succeed." with Pretoria and the defense . Kampf while jailed. Mandela got to add its basso voice to Israel's 

Several years ago, I was the industries of both countries a distorted view of the Israeli- numerous detractors at the UN 

first columnist to label Bishop collaborated with each other. In Arab conflict while in jail. ,and in other concla·ves? 
Tutu an anti-Semite after he this and other aspects Israel Absorbed by the sufferings of his 
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Pollard: A Case Of Misunderstanding 
In his recent article on the 

Pollard. case (AJT, April 20), 
Lewis G. Regen&tein tot..1.lly 
misconstrues both the case 
and the reasons a growing 
number of Je,vs support a 
sentence redu.ction for 
Jonathan Pollard. 

First. nobody que5tion's 
PoTiard's gui1t or contends 
that he should not be 
punished for his sp)'ing. 
What we do que~tion are the 
severity of his sentence and 
the outrageous conduct of 
the United Sates govern­
ment in connection with bis 
sentencing. 

Pollard's espionage activi­
ty was in aid of Israel, one of 
this country's closest allies. 
In other cases where es­
pionage convictions have 
been obtained, ihe length of 
sentence has varied 
substantially, depending on 

Michael Rosenzu:-eig is an 
Atlanta attorney. Steve Ber­
man is in tJu commercial real 
estate business. 

the country on whose behalf 
the espionage was com­
mitted. \Vhen the espionage 
has benefitted an ally rather 
than an enemy, particularly 
where {as here) the defen­
dant has cooperated v.ith the 
government, lesser 
sentences are imposed. 
Po1lard's sentence of life im­
prisonment is a glaring ex­
ception to this rule, and is 
simply unjustified_ 

Particularly offensive, not 
only to Jews but to anyone 
who cherishes our Bill of 
Rights, is the government's 
conduct in the Pollard ca5e. 
The government and PoHard 
entered into a p1ea agree­
ment in connection with 
which the government made 
and broke three separate 
promises. 

First, although the 
government promised net to 
seek a life sentence, the en­
tire tenor of its written and 
oral submissiona at sentenc­
ing amounuid to a request 
for exactly such a sentence. 

Especial1y egregious (and 
inexplicable) were declara­
tions by former Secretary of 
Defense Caspar Weinberger 
which, among other things, 
falseiv acctl.'led Pollard of 
havin·g committed treas.on 
and requested a sentence 
consistent with an offense 

Polfard believed 
that further 
incarceration 
might severely 
damage his wife's 
health. 

that Weinberger claimed 
was more deserving of se­
vere punishment than any 
other crime. 

The government also 
promiaed that it would limit" 
its sentencing statements to 
the court to the facts and cir­
cumstances of PoDard's 
offenses, but m those 
statements accused Pollard 

Lib CUC C 

of greed, decried his "high 
lifestyle," claimed he was 
without remorse and assert­
ed that he was being deceit­
ful. vengefuJ and arrogant. 

Finally, despite the 
government's promise· to ad­
vise the court of Pollard's co­
opera ti on and the con­
siderable value of that coop­
eration, the government t.old 
the court that that roopera­
tion was motivated entirely 
by self interest and came too 
late to facilitate apprehen­
sion of Po11ard's Israeli co­
conspirators, who has fled 
the country. The govern­
ment, in short, "sandbagged" 
Pollard in order fo ensure 
that he would receive a life 
sentence. 

There is also good reason 
to beUeve that Pollard's plea 
was, in any event, coerced. 
Vfhen he entered bis plea, 
his wife was gravely ill and 
had suffered greatly from 
her pre-trial incarceration_ 
Pollard believed, justifiably, 
that further incarceration 

might severely damage his 
wife's health and perhaps 
threaten her 1ife. Yet despite 
bis wife's substantially 
lessilr culpabi1ity, th~ 
government threatened to 
pro9ecute her for multiple 
offenses unless she pled guil­
ty, and refused to accept her 
guilty plea unkss Pollard 
also entered su.-:h a plea. 
Under the circumstances. 
Pollard's plea was hardly 
voluntary. 

We are disturbed tbat any 
American Jew would feel it 
inappropriate to speak out 
against this sort of conduct. 
Is l\fr. Regenstein really se­
riou.s in suggesting that 
supporters of Pollard's at­
tempt to withdraw his gw1ty 
plea are misguided and em­
barrassing? Frankly, we are 
more embarrassed bv Jews 
who wouJd loudly and pub­
licly proclaim their support 
for so obvious a miscarriage 
ofjustice. D 

i 
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"Justice, Justice Shalt 
Thou Pursue": The 

, . , Pollard Spy Case 
As the Rabbi of the syna­

gogue in South Bend, Indiana to 
which the Pollard Family belonged 
when Jonathan and Ann Pollard 
were apprehended for Jonathan's 
alleged involvement in espionage 
in Israel, I was understandably very 
interested in the development of the 
_case from the outset. I must tell you 
that it was very hard for me to deal 
with the 'whole issue for quite so·me 
time, considering that I am a fiercely 
proud American. I often wear my 
patriotism on my sleeve. 

At first, I was very angry at 
all that I had read of Jonathan's 
crime. As a Jew, I felt betrayed by 
Jonathan's apparent sellouL My 
only thought was to act out my role 
as Rabbi-comforter to a family 
besieged by a phalanx of media 
from all over the world. My job, as 
I saw it, was to help the family deal 
with a most grievous reality as its 

consoling pastor. . l 
As I got more involve'.: 

though, I came to realize that all was 
not as it seemed. This was another 

: ~ ... contemptable example of media 
,• ,_ . distortion and manipulation. While 

Jonathan's octs were unquestiona­
bly wrong, the picture painted in the 
press did not accurately portray the 

# essence or magnitude of his crime. 
While Jonathan took the law into 

• his own hands, as he now painfully 
regrets having done, he did not 
betray American security interests 
by his acts. This is clear and incon­
trovertible. In fact, when the prose-

, 
1cutor, Joseph DiGenova, brought 

,;·"-!. -~the mcllctment against Jonathan it 
, f did not even allege that his espio-

, • nage in behalf of Israel caused any 
damage to United States security. 
This conspicuous omission makes 
Jonathan's crime different in kind 
from the gross violations of the 
Walkers and others whose treacher­
ous acts against the state seriously 

~ 
threatened American primary secu- ~ 
rity interests and even endangered 
the lives of American intelligence 

_ , o~ratives ~hind the Iron Curtain. 

I, 

• ,; ,a, • I do not condone Jonathan. s 'l -
crime. He deserves to be punished. 
But, the severity of his sentence and 
theG-dawfulconditionsofhistreat-

. • ment behind bars for well nigh five 
years in solitary confinement de­
mand our interest and our compas-

. sion. As Americans, we are, in the 
immortal words of Abraham Lin­
coln, "the last best hope on earth." 
We honor that image of ourselves 
only when we muster the courage to 

_ stand up against injustice even in 
the delicate or complicated situation. 
We are a government of laws and 
rights that apply even to the errant 
sons of our society. It is with the 
condemned that we see our system 
in its truest light 

I ask that we as Jews become 
more involved in the Pollard story: 
that we become better informed 
about it; that we ·express our will­
ingness to advocate for a more 
humane treatment for Jonathan and 
for a reconsideration of what ap­
pears to bean unconscionably harsh 

sentence. J 
Ely J. Rosenzveig, Rabbi 

Co~gre~ation K~oh . 
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c·a ·cries-.·~wolf 
· • r • · • - •• 

on. Po lard ·case 
ALAN DERSHOWITZ 

LIKE the little boy who 
cried "wotr• too octen, Sec­
retary or Defense Ca.spar I 

Weinberger has lost his credl· 
blllty on the subject or the dam• 
age done to American security 
by the recent spate or spy scan• 
dais. In seeking the maximum 
punishment for Jonathan Pol• 
Jard, who pleaded guilty to , 
spying for our ally Israel, Wein• 
berger grossly exaggerated the 
damage done by Pollard. 

Here are Welnberger's own 
words: "It ls dlfClcult for me to 
conceive or a greater harm to 
national security than that 1 
ca~ed by (Pollard)." 

The secretary or defense 
cannot, or course, substantiate 
his hyperbole. When asked to 
become specific, he hides -
quite understandably - behind 
the curtain or secrecy that must 
Inevitably cover any public dis• 
cusslon or national security 
matters. His letter to the sen• 
tcnclng court, which Imposed 
the maximum life sentence, is • 
class tried. • 

Another charge leveled by prove catastrophic to world 
American authorities ls that peace. By gaining access to the 
Polhlrd ca~ed us to be embar• most secret P.!':~a of the em• 
ra.11aed In the eyes of our Arab bassy - the "bubble" and the 
allles because the Israelis used vault - the KGB may have 
some of his Information to been able to Intercept our most 
bomb the PLO's hedquarters In closely guarded secrets for : a 
Tunis. But It turns out that we period of nearly two years. 
brought the embarrassment ' The Marine Corps Is also al• 
upon ourselves, because we leglng that Its guards provided 
were the ones who leaked the • the Soviets with names,: ad• 
fact that Israel obtained the dresses and telephone numbers 
PLO coordinates from Pollard. of covert U.S. Intelligence 

The secretary. of defense agents In the Soviet Union. A re• 
does not have "to conceive or• cent report from Moscow thnt 
or apcculnte about greater Gcver-nl Soviet c1,izcm1, accused 
harms than those caused by of spying for the United States 
Pollard. All he has to do Is read have been executed may • or 
the cables from Moscow - or may not relate to the inost re­
even the newspapers. The ac• cent scandal. But ' It Is clear 
tua l hnrm to our nallonnl Inter• that, If our spies In Moscow 
ests caused by the brenkdown of have been uncovered, they .wlll 
security at our most Important be treated harshly Indeed. • 
embaiisy are lncalculnbly /· By crying wolf about the re­
greater than those caused by . latlvely benign and limited Pol• 
Pollard. , lard affair - for reasons that 

Defcnse Department sources are still open to speculation -
have lndlcnled that, as a result Secretary Welnb«!rger _has 
of the Mnrlne sex•nnd-iipy sc:an- made It dlrtlcult to posit any 
dal, It ls llk.~y thnt the l(GI3 has credibility to his assessment, 
been able to decode messages 
between Washington and the 
Moscow e mbassy for a consl• What we do know about the 

Information sold to Israel by 
PoJlard la that It was primarily 
regional and tactical, rather 
than global and strategic. It In• 
volved data used to assess and 
neutralize threats by the Pales~ 
tine Liberation Organization.· 
Syria, Pakistan and . other 
sworn enemies of lllraeL 

, derable lime. Including the per• 

and those or other ofClclals who 
also exaggerated Pollard's 
crimes, of the far more serious 
breaches In Moscow. 

Not only do these spy scan• 
dais endanger our external na­
tional security, they also pose 
dangers to open and candid de• 
bate about our lntelllgence and 
counterintelligence appara• 
tuses. 

The Israelis have • denied 
claims that they bartered the 
Pollard lnformalloh to the So-\ 
vlet Union or · Its allies. Such 
claims, In any case, are prepos• 
terous on their. face. It ·seems 
utterly Irresponsible for the De• j 
tense Department to make 
these serious charges without ' 
backing them up with specific 
evidence. In a democracy, It Is 
dirty pool for the government to 
make charges and then to hide I 
behind the curtain o( national 1 

security when asked to substan• 
tlate them. Ir charges cannot be 
substantiated publicly, then 
they should not be made public• I 
ly. The Defense ' Department 
cannot • expect the -,American · 
people to accept ·lta grosa exag• 
~eratlona at face ·value, espe• 
::lally when they fly In the race 
:,f common sense. 

lod surrounding the October 
1986 summit meetings In Ice• 
land between President Rengan 
and General Secretary Mikhail 
Gorbachev. Ir this Is true, then 
our negotiating positions would 
have been known In advance. It 
would be as If one poker player 
could see his opponent's card!'!. 

Other diplomatic and strnle• 
glc Interests were also endan• 
gered by the Moscow scandal. It 
ls believed that the KGB may 
h~ve set a so called "trap door" 
that could have blacked out 
communications between the 
embauy and Washington In the 
event of a crisis. Such a black• 
out. even for a few hours, could 

It Is dlrricult to conduct a 
public debate with government 
officials who make public alle• 
gallons that cannot be support• 
ed by publl:ihed e'.'idcncc. 

The words "trust me" should 
not - In a democracy - mark 
the end or debate about lmpor• 
tant Issues or public policy. 
They will not end the debate 
about the recent spying epl· 

• sodes, because many Ameri-
• cans simply do not trust their 
government officials to be frank 
with them nbout national secur• 
lty. Secretary Welnbergcr's ex• 

, aggcrated reaction to Jonathan 
1 

Pollnrd's crimes feeds that dis• 
trust. . 



DATE: 

FROM: 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 

August 2, 1990 

Rabbi Alexander M. Schindler 

Allan B. Goldman 

For some months now, I have been carrying on a correspondence 

with Jonathan Pollard. The enclosed is his most recent letter, 

and I thought it might interest you. 

Certainly it reflects the sharpness of his mind. He would have 

made one hell of a lawyer. Perhaps I think so because I agree 

with him substantially. 



DATE: 

FROM: 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 

August 2, 1990 

Rabbi Alexander M. Schindler 

Albert Vorspan 

The enclosed letter from Jonathan Pollard may interest you. 

What is your reaction? 



• 

Jonathan Pollard 
09185-016 
P.O. Box 1000 
Marion, IL 62959 

Dear Jonathan: 

May 3, 1990 
8 Iyar 5750 

Thank you for your letter of April 11. Let me say that I 
fully agree with you concerning the Mandela problem. 
Unfortunately, the hot heads will have their way. There are 
already rumblings to that effect within our community but 
your analysis is sound. 

I reciprocate your good wishes. Pesach has passed, of 
course, and your letter never made it to me before then but 
there are other holidays coming up. I hope they will be 
sweet, if not for you then at least for those you love. 

Kindest greetings. 

Sincerely, 

Alexander M. Schindler 
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Dear Rabbi Schindler, 

S"O'P 
March 11, 1990 

Marion , IL 

After reading your response to Nelson Mandela's out-

rageous "Zionism-is-colonialism" declaration in Lusaka, I 

think that you should be commended for having upheld the honor 

not only of Israel, but also of all those Jewish South Africans 

who have fought so hard over the years to end the scourge of 

Apartheid. I realize, Rabbi Schindler, that you are regularly 

criticized from certain quarters due to your position on the 

Arab-Israeli peace process. I can only hope that your forth­

right condemnation of Mandela's anti-Zionist pronunciamento 

will serve to remind the more conservative elements within 

our community that Alexander Schindler is as much of a Jewish 

nationalist as they are. 

My best wishes for a happy Purim. 

Sincerely , 

1~~ 
Jonathan Pollard 

.s. Just out of curiosity , Rabbi, have you considered leading 
an interdenominational delegation of Rabbis over to South Africa 
to correct Mr. Mandela's erroneous understanding of Zionism? I 
know this would be a lonq shot , but if we don't make the effort 
to counter Arafat's infliience over the man we will ahve lost the 
"battle", so to speak, by default. It might even be useful to have 
the Histadrut offer a number of labor "scholarships" to COSATU just 
to make sure that the organization has someone who will be sym­
pathetic to Israel. Stay well ... 
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Shaip.ir 'Dangerous, Cruel/ Shai;QU s,aYs 
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rael To Proceed "With·~:VOA Project ,--., 
-- -a<' 1 ✓ • .,.. • A,~·r "'.,._ 1. ,•• ~ 'J~ .,~; -,; ·•• _, ••• e. "'• 

By Hugh Orgel ·,. ~' . • / Authorit; an resid~~ts of the Ara;a regicin, a~e deter-

TEL AVIV (JTA) - Israeli leaders are deter- mined to block the project. They say the 2,000-acre 

mined to go ahead wjth construction of powerful Voice area of the station, with its nearly 900-foot high anten-

of America radio transmitters in the Arava region of nas - almost as tall as the Eiffel Tower -would ruin 

the Negev, despite strong protests from environmen- one of the few remaining nature preserves in the 

talists and evidence that the transmitters could pose a Negev, blocking scenic hiking trails and destroying 

hazard to aircraft navigation. the landscape. 

Prime Minister Yitzhak Shamir assured Malcolm They say the electromagnetic radiation generated 

Forbes Jr., chairman of the U.S. Board of Interna- by the transmitters would endanger the health of resi-

tional Broadcasting, that despite the "problems," dents of the region and disrupt the flight of migrating 

Israel would honor its 3-year-old agreement for con-' : birds. ~. ~- • • 

struction of the station. The transmitters still require • • Moreover, the Israeli air force has acknowledged 

permits from the National Planning and Building the radiation could affect the delicate electronic sys-

Councils. terns of advanced aircraft. 

Shamir stressed that Israel wants to strengthen I ' • 

its relations with the United States. 
Forbes and U.S. Ambassador William Brown got 

similar assurances from Finance Minister Shimon 
Peres ! II ion from the 

While some 200 environmentalists demonstrated mation rom 

outside the Finance Ministry in Jerusalem, Peres other sources. · -,.- ~lt''> • 

pledged that the government would do everything pos- Consequently; the lsraeli air force plans. to move 

sible to speed up the start of the $400 million project. its training base and ftring ranges further south,ther-

• . At'a news confer-ence with F-0rbes a.nd Brown, -· eby extending the-environmental damage. • • • 

Communications Minister Gad Ya'acobi stressed that Israeli and American environmentalists have 

the transmitter complex would be an economic boon -already urged President Bush to cancel the project. In I 
for Israel. He claimed it would provide 550 jobs over .i •• a letter to the president on Feb. 6, they noted that apart 

the three-and-a-half-year start-up period, and 200 pro- from "serious environmental problems," the project's 

fessional positions on a· permanent basis. i· ·stl'ategic value is .. highly questionable" i~ view of dra- • 

Environmentalists, led by the Society for the Pro- matic even~s in Easte:n Eu~ope and the warmi.~ of J 
... --~c-~~ ~~:.~~-- ~n_.!s~~,~~ the Na:~:! -.~:~I":~ __.:"::!ation~-~~~h the •• ~'?!,iet ~~o:1: .... ~- ·· ,f [: ...: ., 
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